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AUDITOR’S REPORT

To\ The Shareholders of Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies (An Egyptian
Joint company — Under Public Free Zone)

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Al Arafa for
Investment and Consultancies (An Egyptian Joint company — Under Public Free Zone), which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of January 31, 2023, and the
consolidated statements of Profit or Loss, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of Company’s management.
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the Egyptian Accounting Standards and in the light of
the prevailing Egyptian laws, management responsibility includes, designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, management responsibility also includes selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Egyptian Standards on Auditing and
in the light of the prevailing Egyptian laws. Those standards require to comply with ethical
requirements, plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.
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Hazem Hassan

Translated from Arabic

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Al Arafa for Investment and
Consultancies (An Egyptian Joint company — Public Free Zone) as of January 31, 2023 and of
its financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the financial year then ended in
accordance with the Egyptian Accounting Standards and the Egyptian laws and regulations
relating to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements.

KPMG Hazem Hassan
Public Accountants and Consultants

KPMG Hazem Hassan

Alexandna: 30 Apl‘il 2023 Public Accountants and consultants
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Translated From Arablc
AUDITOR'S REPORT

To: The Shareholders of Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies company (S.A.E).

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Al Arafa for

Investment and Consultancies Company (S.A.E) which comprise the consolidated financial
position as at January 31, 2023, the consolidated statements of Profit and Loss, comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows for the financial year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

nagement’ or the Fi al Sta n

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of Company's management.
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the Egyptian Accounting Standards and in the light of
the prevailing Egyptian laws, management responsibility includes, designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
management responsibility also includes selecting, applying appropriate accounting policies,
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's Responsibili

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Egyptian Standards on Auditing and
in the light of the prevailing Egyptian laws. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements, plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

41, Sherif Pacha Street, Cairo, Cgypt.
Tel: (02) 23939633 - 23939372 - 23937108 - 23930660 Fax: (02) 23927137
E-mail : aceiantonatalla-co.com Website: www.antonaialla-co.com
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Translated From Arabic

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in ail

material respects on the consolidated financial position of Al Arafa for Investment and
Consultancies Company (S.A.E) as of January 31, 2023 and of its consolidated financial
performance, its consolidated cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with
the Egyptian Accounting Standards and the Egyptian laws and regulatibns relating to the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements.

Cairo on April 30, 2023

EFSA's register of auditors no. (107)
{A.R no. 4994)

41, Sherif Pacha Street, Cairo, Egypt.
Tel: (02) 23939635 - 23939372 - 23937108 - 23930660 Fax: {02) 23927137

E-mail : sccwantonstalia-co com Website: www.antonatalla-co.com
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Al Arafa lor Investment and Consultancies

(An Egyptian Joint company — Under Public Free Zone)

Translated From Arabic

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss for the financial year ended 31 January 2023

Operation Revenues
Operation Cost

Gross profit of operation

Other income

Selling and Distribution expenses
General and Administrative expenses
Impairment losses in financial assets
Other expenses

Profit from operating activities

Share of the group in associate companics activities oulcomes
Profit of linancial investments at finr value

Finance Incomes

Finance expenses

Net profit (loss) for the year before tax

Income tax expense

Net profit (loss) for the year after tax

Distributed ns follows :

Share of holding company’s sharcholders
Share of non-controlling interests
Net profit / (loss) for the year after tax

Basic and diluted Earnings per share (USD)Y/ (share)

31 January 2023

31 January 2022

Note No. usn USD

4) 230 792 234 183 872 224
{3) (133 899 549) (115773 309)
96 892 68S 68 M98 915
(6) 588 599 2558717
(7) (47 404 962) (42 984 052)
(8) (23 501 330) (24 248 531)
(9) (3 561 622) (1 628 197)
(10) (1 628 364) (1 066 724)
21 384 986 730 128
(11) | 085 375 40 553
(12) : 22 685
(13) 6797 836 7195 408
(14) (15957 056) (12 374 456)
13311 141 (4 385 682)
(19) (1 601 862) (959 952)
11 709 279 (5 345 634)
1316906 (5 474 981)
392 373 129 347
11709279 (5 345 634)

{42) 0,0249 (0,011)

* The notes on pages (10) to (74) are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

oy =



Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies

{An Egyptian Joint company — Under Public Free Zone)

Consolidated Comprehensive Income Statement for the financial year ended 31 January 2023

Translated From Arabic

Net profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income items
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or loss:

Actuanal (loss) / Profit for the private retirement system

Shares of the holding company's in the comprehensive income of sister companics

Application of Egyptian Accounting Standard No 13 [mpact of Foriegn Exchange Rate Change
Impact of defiered Tax

Items that or may be reclassified subsequently to profit pr loss:

The tmpact of o cosh flow hedging instrument
Foreign entities translation differences

Total comprehensive income for the year
Deduet

Transferred to retained earnings

Distributed as follows :
Share of holding company's shareholders
Share of non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the year

* The notes on pages (10) to (74) are an integral part of these consolidated Moancial statements.

NOTE

(39

{40-2)

3 Janwary 2023 31 January 2022
Usp usp
11709 2719 (5345 634)

(2 930 350) 1652 062
(2 100 305) (795 348)
(31 518924) =
1 634 729 (380714)
(23 205 571) (4829 634)
- 674,240
(B 018 315) 2585431
(31 223 886) (1 569 963)
(32 643 829) -
1419943 (1 569 363)
2344 164 {1699 310)
(924 221) 129 347
1419943 {1 569 963)
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Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancices
{(An Egyptian Joint company — Under Public Free Zone)
Cansoliduted Statement of Cash Mows for the financial vear ended 31 January 2023

Translated From Arabic

Cash flows from operating activities

Net Prohiv/(loss) for the year before tax

Adjustments for the followings :

Property. plant and equipment depreciation

Right ol use amortization

Capital (gain) from sale of Property. plant and equipment

Interest and finance lease expenses

Interest and finance expenses

Credit Interest

Amortization of Intangible Assets - Trademarks

The Group's share of the results of the business of associate companies
Impairment losses on investments

Lxpected Credit Loss

Net Interest Cost and Current Service of the Employee Benelits System
Reverse of impairment of inventory

Prolit of financial investments at fair value

Inventorics

Work in progress

Debtors and otrer debit balances

Pue rom related parties

Creditors and other credit balances

Due w related parties

Provisions used

cash avaiable from operating activities

Dividends

rentals paid

Interest and [ihance expense paid

Net cash avaiable from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activitics

Paymems for acquisition of property, plant and equipment and projects under construction
Proceeds from sale of property. plant and equipment

Paviments for the purchase of cquity investments (associile companies)
Pavments for the purchase of intangible assets

Recervables tor the purchase of linancial investments avaikable for sale
Proceeds from a treasury shares due afier three months

Pavments to aquire {inancial investments at fair value through profit and loss
Proceeds from the sale of financial investments at fair value through profit or loss
proceed from credit interest

Net cash (used in) from investing activities

Cash flows Irom financing activitivs

Change i Notes recervable - Long term

Change in Notes payable - Long term

Net (payments) [rom banks-credit Gcilines and Loans

Net i payment) proceeds from other long-term liabilitics

Employee Benefits Payments

Net cash (used in) financing activitices

MNet change in cash and cash equivalents during the year

Impact of the change in foreign currencies on the item of cash

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ol the vear

Cash and cash equivilents at the end of the year

* The notes on pages (10) to (74) are an integral part of these consolidated financinl statements,

Note

(11)

{12)

(23)

(29)

(18)
(20)

(17)

(39)

(25)

31 Janunry 2023

31 January 2022

usD USD
13311 141 {4 385 682)
4 835328 5045533
6087 974 5521 902
(29 641) (1277010)
3252 896 2143499
12 704 160 10 688 784
(2 669 863) (3 845 800)
2 988 399 3350 560
(1 085 375) (40 553)
| 806 007 .
1 755615 1 628 197
(129 672) 309 033
(451 544) (1 067 523)
. {22 685)
42 3754125 18 048 255
(10 093 587) (312 220)
2 885 867 (2918 916)
12 205 083 15 306 857
(1 349 220) 3497
(10 801 606) (8 755 939)
(168 573) (1 172 545)
448 345 ( 486 205)
35501 734 19712 784
(121 802) {1 180 456)
(7 320 000) (6 945 633)
(12 704 160) {10 501 350)
15 355 772 1085 345
(4 368 979) (5023 933)
184 755 2601 008
(222 879) ,
(762 952) 5
. 550553
i 577 789
. {997 581)
995 286 1 020 266
2 669 863 3830737
(1 504 906) 2 558 839
. 25320
(274 194) (1619 277)
(30 916 180) (7 499 309)
9220272 (6 001 423)
{613 216) (665 184)
(22 583 318) (15 759 873)
(8 732 452) (12 115 689)
(31,518 924) -
64 567 774 76 065 948
24 316 398 63 950 259




Transiated from Arabic

Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies
{An Egyptian Joint stock company — Under Public Free Zones)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended January 31, 2023

1- Background and activities

1-1 Legal entity

— Al Arafa for Investment and consultancies Company - An Egyptian Joint Stock
Company (Swiss garments company -previous) — was established in accordance with
the provisions of the safeguards law and investment incentives No. (8) for the year
{1997), with the free zones system.

— The Board of Directors of Swiss Garments Company (S.A.E.)) — Free Zone
{subsidiary company) proposed in its meeting held on June 18, 2005, to separate the
Company into two Joint Stock Companies (main Company and Spin-off Company)
operating according to the Free Zones System with the same shareholders and the
same participation percentage in the issued capital companies as at of separation
date. The Board also proposed using the book value of the assets and liabilities, as of
June 30, 2005, as a basis for the separation. As the purpose of the main company will
be specialized in investing in financial instruments and the spin-off company will be
specialized in manufacturing ready-made garments as the. company’s.Extraordinary
General Assembly at its session held on October 14,2005 agreed on the mentioned
board of director’s proposal, as a final approval on the issuance of the separation
decision was taken by the general Authority for Investment and Free Zones as of
November 24,2005.

— The main Company's name was changed to Al Arafa for Investment and
Consultancies Company, and the commercial register was amended accordingly on

January 11, 2006, and the investment gazette on January 16, 2006.

-~ The company’s amendment has been registered in the commercial registry with no.
17426 on January 16, 2006.

— According to the merging company’s main statute, the company’s financial year start
from the first of February from each year and ends on 31 January from the next year,

rule 55.

— The Company term is 25 years, Starting from the date of this amendment registration
to the commercial register.

— Company's location: Nasr city - free zone, Cairo, Arab Republic of Egypt.
— The Company's Chairman is Maria Luisa Cicognani.

-~ The Company's Vice Chairman and Managing Director is Dr / Alaa Ahmed Abdel-
Maksoud Arafa.

-10-



Translated from Arabic

Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies
{An Egyptian Joint stock company — Under Public Free Zones)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended January 31, 2023

1-2

Company's purpose
Providing financial and management consultancy services, investing in Capitals of Egyptian and

Foreign Companies and participating in restructuring companies and providing technical and
management support.

The consolidated financial statements comprise of the financial statements of Al Arafa
for Investment and consultancies (the Parent Company) & its subsidiaries (referred to as
the “Group”) and the Group's share in the profits and losses of its associates is also
included. The Group is involved in several activities which are represented in
establishing and operating factories for the manufacture of ready-made garments, Textile
production necessary for their manufacture in all their forms, varieties, types, and
supplies, exporting them abroad or selling them in the local market, manufacturing all
types of medical protective clothing, trading, and marketing ready-made garments of all
kinds and forms wholesale or sectoral, import, export, and commercial agencies. As well
as the establishment and operation of a factory Wool yarn and weaving and wool
spinning mixed with industrial, synthetic, and natural fibers and acrylic yarn after being
cut from the bristle’s tops, as well as real estate investment in cities and new urban
communities, remote areas, and areas outside the old valley.

Registration in the stock exchange
The Company has been registered in the Egyptian Stock Exchange.

Merger of both Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies Company (S. A, E.)
under the General Free Zone System (merging company) and Al Arafa for
Investment in Garments industry Companv (merged company), Al Arafa for

Investment in Spinning and Textile Industry Company (merged company), and Al
Arafa for Investments in Garments Marketing and Retail Company (merged

company)

The decision of the formed committee was issued by the General Authority for
Investment and Free Zones, approved on the first of July 2019 to enquire the initial
assessment of the assets and liabilities of the following companies for the purpose of
merging with the Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies Company (S. A. E.)
merging company with both Al Arafa for Investment in Spinning and Textile Industry
Company (S. A. E.) (free zone), and Al Arafa for Investment in Garments industry
Company (S. A. E.) (free zone) and Al Arafa for Investments in Garments Marketing
and Retail Company (S. A. E.) (free zone) (merged companies) in book values
according to the financial statements of the merging company and the merged
companies on October 31, 2018. Mainly taken as a basis for the merger. And
establishing the net equity of Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies Company
(merging company) on October 31, 2018 amounting to USD 146 935 721 (one hundred
forty six million nine hundred thirty five thousand seven hundred and twenty one USD) and
the net non-controlling interest in the Al Arafa for Investment in Garments indusiry
Company (merged company} deficit of USD 31 971 885 (thirty one million nine hundred
seventy one thousand eight hundred eighty five USD) and the Al Arafa for Investment in
Spinning and Textile Industry Company (merged company) amounting to USD 16 753
(sixteen thousand seven hundred and fifty three USD) after excluding the value of the
investments of Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies Company (the merging
company) in Al Arafa for Investment in Spinning and Textile Industry Company (merged
company) amounting to USD 2 077 340 (two million and seventy seven thousand and three
hundred and forty USD), and Al Arafa for Investments in Garments Marketing and Retail
Company (S. A. E.) (merged company) deficit of USD 3 896 892 (three million eight
hundred ninety six thousand eight hundred and ninety two USD).

-11-



Translated from Arabic

Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies
{An Egyptian Joint stock company — Under Public Free Zones)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended January 31, 2023

According to the decision of the extraordinary general assembly of the company on
August 4, 2019, it was agreed to specify the authorized capital of the merging company
amounted to USD 150 million (one hundred and fifty million USD) and the issued and
paid-up capital of the company amounted to USD 94 050 000 (ninety four million fifty
thousand USD) distributed over the amounting 470 250 000 shares (four hundred
seventy million two hundred and fifty thousand shares) each share value is 20 US cents.
It is represented by the total equity in the merging company, Al Arafa for Investment
and Consultancies Company and the equity of non-controlling interest in the merged
companies according to the report of the committee formed by the General Authority for
Investment and Free Zones and according to the decision of the Executive chairman of
the General Authority for Investment and Free Zones No. 85 of 2019 regarding
licensing the merger of each of the Al Arafa for Investment in Spinning and Textile
Industry Company (S. A. E.), and Al Arafa for Investments in Garments Marketing and
Retail Company (8. A. E.) (free zone) (merged companies) and Al Arafa for Investment
in Garments industry Company (S. A. E.) in Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies
Company (S. A. E.) merging company in the public free zones system in Nasr City, and
this was registered in the company’s commercial registry on December 10, 2019.

Subsidiary Companies

The following is a statement of the percentage of investments in the subsidiaries of Al Arafa
for Investment and Consultancies Company, which have been included in the consolidated
financial statements:

Direct and Indirect
Ownership Percentage

Company’s January January
Subsidiary's Name purpose Country 31,2023 31,2022

¢ Concrete Garments Company Garments Egypt 91.64 % 91.64 %

¢ Swiss Cotton Garments Company Garments Egypt 99.20 % 99.20 %

¢ Egypt Tailoring Garments Company Garments Egypt 99.40 % 99.40 %

» Crystal for Making shirts * Garments Egypt 99.50 % 99.50 %

¢ Fashion Industry garments company Garments Egypt 89.80 % 89.80 %

» Camegit for Garments Manufacturing * Garments Egypt - 99.50 %

» Egypt Portugal Marketing Company Marketing Egypt 59% 59 %
and trading

¢ EP Garments Company Garments  Portugal 60 % 60 %

¢ Euromed for trading & marketing Marketing Egypt 97.21 % 97.21%
Company and trading

¢ White Head Spinning Company Garments Egypt 52.32% 44.10 %

» Port Said Garments Company Garments Egypt 97.17 % 97.17 %

» Swiss Garments Company Garments Egypt 99.20 % 99.20 %

* Baird Group** Marketing  England 08.15 % 98.15%
and trading

» Al Arafa for real estate investment Real estate Egypt 99.2 % 99.2%
investment

® FC trading company*** Trading UAE 100 % 100 %

» Savini Garments Company Garments Egypt 99.2 % 99.2 %

On 30 November 2022, Camegit for Garments Manufacturing (merged company) was
merged into Crystal for Making shirts (merging company).
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Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies

{An Egyptian Joint stock company — Under Public Free Zones)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended January 31, 2023

Translated from Arabic

** Baird Group

— Baird Holding Company was established in England and Wales and the group

consists of the following subsidiaries:

Company’s Name Establishment Country

* Baird Group Itd

* BMB Group Itd

= BMB Clothing Itd

» BS Europe B.V

» BS Europe GmbH

= Racing Green ltd

* Addison & Steele Itd

= Alexander of England lid

= Worth Valley Meanswear ltd

England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
Netherlands
Germany
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales

— The purpose of the company is to sell formal and casual men's clothing through
many of the group's stores, in addition to the franchise rights in many supermarkets
in the United Kingdom and European Union countries. The group owns many
distinctive brands such as: Ben Sherman, Gibson London, Alexander and Jeff Bank.

¥k FC Trading Company

— The company was established under the free zone system of the United Arab
Emirates, license number DMCC-767843 issued by the Dubai Multi Commodities

Center (DMCC) of the Government of Dubai.

— The purpose of the company is trading for proprietary account on regulated exchange

(DMCC).

1-6 Investment in Associate through equity method:

Ownership Percentage

January
Subsidiary's Name Country 31,2023
Goldentex-direct contribution Egypt 48,59 %

2- Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial statements

January
31,2022

43,6 %

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Egyptian Accounting Standards "EAS", EAS has been issued by the Minister of
investment under No. 243 of the year 2006 and in accordance with the prevailing

Egyptian Laws and Regulation.

The Egyptian Accounting standard (EAS) requires a reference to the international
financial reporting standard (IFRS) for events and transaction for which EAS or legal
requirements have not been issued or how to account for.

The consolidated financial statements were approved for issvance by the company

board of director on April 30, 2023.

Details of the Group’s accounting policies are included in Note No. 40.
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Translated from Arabic

Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies
{An Egyptian Joint stock company — Under Public Free Zones)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended January 31, 2023

2-1 Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance to historical cost
basis except for assets and liabilities which are recognized at its fair value, derivatives,
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or other comprehensive
income and amortized cost.

2-2 Functional and presentation currency
The consolidated financial statements are presented in the USD.

i. Judgments
Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most

significant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in
the following notes: Notes No. (40-17) Revenue Recognition: the revenue is recognized
according to the detailed accounting policies applied.

Notes No. (40-9) Lease contract classification

Notes No. (40-1) investment in associates through owners’ equity: if the group has
significant influence in the investee companies.

it.  Assumption and estimation uncertainties
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at December 31, 2022 that

might have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the camrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the next financial year is included in the following
notes:

Notes No. (40-16) Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingent
liabilities: Key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of
resources.

Notes No. (40-6) ECL measurement for cash on banks, Account Receivables, Notes
Receivables and other current assets.

2-3 Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Egyptian
Accounting Standards requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the implementation of policies and reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, income and expenses. These estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors, actual
results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
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Translated from Arabic

Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies
(An Egyptian Joint stock company — Under Public Free Zones)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended Januvary 31, 2023

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company evaluates the asset at the date of the financial reporting, if there is an
indication that the asset value has decreased. If any indication is found, the Company
evaluates the net realizable value of the asset, the realizable value of the asset is the asset
fair value less cost of sale or its value is use which is higher. When evaluating the used
value, the estimated future cash flows of the asset are discounted to its present value
using a discount rate reflects current market valuation of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. When determining the fair value deducted by the costs of sale,
recent market transactions are considered.

If the realizable value of the asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
asset carrying amount is reduced to its collectable amount, the impairment loss is
recognized directly in the statement of profit or loss.

If the impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the asset camrying amount is increased to the
adjusted value of the collectable amount, but only to the extent the camrying amount do not
exceed the carrying amount that could have been determined in the absence of an
impairment loss of the camying amount of the asset in previous years, The reversed
impairment loss is recognized directly in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Expected credit losses provision for commercial customers
The Group uses provision record to calculate expected credit losses for commercial
customers, the provision rates are based on the customer Company’s delay days.

The provision record is initially based on the observed historical Group default rates, the
Group calculates the matrix accurately to adjust the historical credit loss experiment with
forward-looking information. For example, if the expected economic conditions (i.e. GDP
and the overall inflation rate) are.expected to deteriorate over the next year, which may
increase the number of defaults in the industrial sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical default rates are updated and observed and
changes in future-oriented estimates are analyzed.

The assessment of the relationship between the historical default rates that are observed, the
expected economic conditions and the expected credit losses is a significant estimate. The
experiment of the historical credit loss and expectations of the Group's economic conditions
may not represent the actual default of the customer's payment in the future.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has legal or constructive obligation from
past event, and settlement of obligations is probable, and its value can be measured
reliably.
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Translated from Arabic

Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies
(An Egyptian Joint stock company — Under Public Free Zones)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended January 31, 2023

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the reporting date taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation, when the provision is measured using the
estimated cash flows to settle the current obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows.

In case of expectation of recovery of some or all economic benefits required to settle any
of the provisions from third party, the amount due is recognized as an asset if it is certain
to be recovered and can be measured in a reliable manner.

Useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company’s management determines the estimated useful life of the property, plant
and equipment for the purpose of calculating depreciation, which is calculated after
consideration of the expected use of the asset or actual useful life. The department
regularly reviews estimated remaining life at least annually and the method of
depreciation to ensure that the method and depreciation amount are agreed with the
expected pattern of economic benefits of assets.

Lease contracts — estimation of the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot easily determine the implied interest rate in the lease contract, and
therefore uses the incremental borrowing rate to measure the lease obligations. The
incremental borrowing rate is the interest rate that the Company must pay to assume the
necessary financing over a similar period and with a similar guarantee to obtain an asset
with the same value as the “right of use” in a similar economic environment. Therefore,
the incremental borrowing rate reflects what the Company "must pay", which requires an
estimation when there are no declared rates or when it needs to be modified to reflect the
terms and conditions of the lease contract.

Allowance for slow moving and obsolete inventories

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. When inventory
becomes old or obsolete, an estimate is made of net realizable value. For individually
significant amounts, this estimation is performed on an individual basis. Amounts
which are not individually significant, but which are old or obsolete, are assessed
collectively and a provision applied according to the inventory type and the degree of
age or obsolescence of the inventory.

Estimating the net realizable value of the work in progress

Plots of land held for development and properties classified as work-in-progress are
stated at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. Net realizable value is
evaluated with reference to selling prices, costs of completion, advance payments
received, development plans and market conditions existing at the end of the
financial year. For some properties, net present value is determined by the Group
based on appropriate external indicators and considering recent market transactions,
when applicable. Available on appropriate external indicators and considering recent
market transactions, when available.
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Translated from Arabic

Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies
{An Egyptian Joint stock company — Under Public Free Zones)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended January 31, 2023

Net realizable value in respect of work-in-progress is assessed with reference to
market prices at the reporting date for similar completed properties, net of the
estimated costs to complete the development and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale, considering the time value of money, if material.

Defined benefits plan

The cost of defined benefit plan and the present value of the assets and liabilities by
Baird group (one of the group subsidiaries) are determined using actuarial valuations.
The actuarial valuations involve making various assumptions that may differ from
actual development in the future, includes determining the discount rates, salary
increases, mortality rates and employee turnover, because the complexities involved
in valuation and its long-term nature, the defined benefits asset and liability is highly
sensitive to change in these assumptions.

All assumptions are reviewed in the history of each financial position.

2-4 Fair value measurement

Certain number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require
measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.
The Group has an established control framework with respect to fair values
measurement, This includes the presence valuation team that has overall
responsibility for reviewing all fair values according to the different levels in the
hierarchies referred to below, and a report of those values and methods of measuring
them will be issued directly to the board of directors. A report on the material matters
related to the evaluation process will be issued to the Internal Audit Committee.
Accreditation is measured in the fair value of assets and liabilities mainly on
available market data, and the data that is relied upon in the evaluation is classified
according to the following hierarchy :

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs of the quoted prices included in level (1) that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived
from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).

The Group recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end
of the financial year during which the change has occurred.
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Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancics
fAn Egyptian Joint stock company — Under Publie Free Zones)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended January 31, 2023

Transtated firom Arabic

4

h

Revenues

Tailoring Salcs
Retail sales

Other Revenues

- Cost of sales

Raw material and supplices

Goods held for sale

Packing and wrapping maicrial
Industrial wages

Property. plant and equipment
depreciation

Industrial expenses

Reversal of Impairment losscs in

inventory

Less/Add:
Lixport subsidy revenues
Change in Finished goods and Work

In process

Other revenucs

Rental Revenue

Capital gains

Discounts

Revenue from service rendered Lo others
Other

141 334 110

January January
Note
31,2023 31,2022
No. UsD USD
100 164 603 64 201 420
130 591 278 119495 013
36 353 175 791
230 792 234 183 872 224
71 800 198 45 771 162
36 682 781 44 418 069
2305629 1 183 264
12 880 229 10 871310
(15) 2571 661 2139303
15745 156 12 045 904
23
L (451 544) (1 067 523)

115361 489

(9033 324) {3969012)
1 398 763 4 380 832
133 899 549 115773 309
261 626 200 664
29641 1277010

210 106 90 269

- 82075

87 226 908 699

588 599 2558717




Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies
{An Egyptian Joint stock company — Under Public Free Zones)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended January 31, 2023

Translated from Arabic

7

9.

Selling and Distribution expenses

Wages and salaries

Rents

Sales commissions

Advertising

Iixport expenses

Amortization of right of usc assets (arisen
from leasc contracts)

Propenty, ptant and equipment depreciation
Amortization of intangible assets

Others

General and Administrative expenses

Wages and salaries

Property, plant and equipment depreciation
Amortization of right of use assets (ariscn
{rom lease contracts)

Rents

lL.ease Payments

Others

Impairment losses in financial asscts

Expected credit losses on Trade reccivables

Impairment losses on Investments

January January
Note 31,2023 31,2022
No. usD usn
16 515436 i3 536983
4135409 4250 363
6197222 5073672
5274194 4 445 542
1 870963 3374 383
(21) 5922 664 5251770
(15) 668 152 1301 756
(20) 2988 399 3 350 560
3832523 2399023
47 404 962 42 984 052
9307 693 10 130516
(15) 1595515 1604 474
2N 165 310 270 132
189 078 244 752
-- 457 827
12 243 754 11 540582
23 501 350 24 248 331
(24) 1755615 1 628 197
(7 I 806 007 —
3 561 622 1628 197



Translated from Arabic

Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies
(An Egyptian Joint stock company — Under Public Free Zones)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended January 31, 2023

10- Other expenses

January January
Note 31,2023 31,2022
No. USD USD
Formed Provisions (29) 569 457 617 515
GAFI fees 769 811 211 508
Others 289 096 237 701
1628 364 1066 724
11- Company’s Share in results of associate companies’ business
January January
31,2023 31,2022
USD USD
Company’s Share in results of golden tex 1085375 40 553
company’s business
1085375 40 553
12- Sale of Financial investments at fair value through Profit or Loss
January January
31,2023 31,2022
USD USD
Sale of Financial investments at fair value - 22 685
— 22 685
13- Finance income
Credit interest 2669 863 3 845 800
Foreign currency translation differences 4127 973 3349 608
Total of ﬁ.nance income generated 6797 836 7195 408
from financial assets
14- Finance Expenses
Interest of lease contracts 3252 896 1 685 672
Interest expense, bank commission 12 704 160 10 688 784
and expenses
15 957 056 12 374 456
Net Finance Expenses (9 159 220) {5179 048)
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Translated from Arabic

Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies
{An Egyptian Joint stock company — Under Public Free Zones)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended January 31, 2023

e The land item in the consolidated financial statements includes the following:

- The cost of two plots of land number (10 ,9) in the west of industrial zone (A1) at
10" ramadan city amounted to L.E 6,4 million with an area of 17 534 square meters,
40 477 square meters .

- The cost of buying a plot of land number (from 6/191 to 6/198) in the medium
industries zone - Bayad Al Arab - the new city of Beni Suef (east of the Nile) in
Beni Suef, with an area of 152 981.40 square meters purchased from the New Urban
Communities Authority new Beni Suef city authority, with a total amount of L.E
10,7 Million equivalent to an amount of USD 1,9 Million and the registration in the
real estate registry is in progress.

16- Projects under constructions

January January
31,2023 31,2022
Usb USD
Building and constructions 4 731 656 5109787
Advance payments to purchase plant, property and 716 395 1077519
equipment
5448 051 6 187 306
Less:
Impairment losses in Projects under constructions (115475) (1154735
5332576 6071 831
17- Financial Investments with fair value through
Al January January
Other comprehensive income 31,2023 31,2022
USD Usb
» The value of the holding company's contribution to the 554 854 554 854
capital of El Asher Company for Development and Real
Estate Investment (SAE) (the contribution percentage is
2.62% of the capital)
» The value of the holding company's contribution to 29472 29 472
the capital of the Egyptian Company for Trade and
Marketing (SAE) the contribution percentage is
4.036% of the capital)
= The value of the holding company’s contribution to 2 543 467 2 543 467
the capital of the Middle East Company (METCO)
(the contribution percentage is 48.95% of the capital)
*» The costofinvesting in “Mada Capital” Fund (subsidiary compar 1 454 161 2 449 447
» Other investments 67 669 67 669
Total Investments 4 649 623 3 644 909
Less:
Impairment in investments (3 164 907) (579 583)
1484 716 5065 326




Translated from Arabic

Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies
(An Egyptian Joint stock company — Under Public Free Zones)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended January 31, 2023

Foreign
currency
Balance Formed translation Balance at
February 1, during the differences January
2022 year during the year 31,2023
USb USb USD USD
e [mpairment loss of investment* 579 583 1 806 007 779 317 3164 907
579 583 1 806 007 779 317 3164 907
18- Equity - accounted investees (associates companies
Ownership January January
Country of percentage 31,2023 31,2022
Company’s Name investee  Incorporation Y USD USD
 Golden Tex. Wool Egypt 48.95 % 3343030 4135 081
3343 030 4135 081

The following table shows the investment movement in golden tex during the

financial vear ended:

Total Assets

Total Liabilities
Net Assets

Total Revenues
Total Cost

Net Profit after tax

Investment Balance at the beginning of the year

The group's share in associate company’s profit

The effect of applying accounting standard (13) on owner’s equity
The cost of buying additional share in the company
Investment Balance at the end of the year

(o}
Lh

January January
31,2023 31,2022
Equivalent to Equivalent to
USD USD
29012290 20914085
25398228 21 485 816
3614 062 8428 269
18 895 662 13 190 826
(13 607 023) (9 877 525)
8902 701 11 741 570

January January
31,2023 31,2022
UsD UsD
4 135081 4094 528
1 085 375 40 553
(2 100 305) -
222 879 -
3343 030 4135081




Translated from Arabic

Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies
{An Egyptian Joint stock company — Under Public Free Zones)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended January 31, 2023

19- Tax

a) Income Tax expense

January January
31,2023 31,2022
UsSD USD
Current income tax expense 1 130 666 058 343
Deferred tax expenses 471 196 1 609
1 601 862 959 952

b) Deferred tax Assets and liabilities

- The balance of the deferred tax assets and liabilities represent the following:

Recopnized in
January Recognized the other Foreign January
31,2022 in the Profit Comprehensive currency 31,2023
Assets / Or Loss income Translation Assets/
{liabilities) Statement statement differences (liabilities)
USD USD USD USD USD
Company’s share in comprehensive - — 472 569 - 472 569
income of associate company
Actuarial losses of retirement benefit (380 714) - 659 328 - 278614
Fixed Assets (2 624 360) 471 196 - (111 849) {3 207 405)
Retained tax losses 1605304 - - (183 280) 1422024
The effect of applying - - 502 832 - 502832
accounting standard (13)
Deferred Tax During the Year (1399 770) 471 196 1634729 (295129) (531 366)
Recognized in
January Recognized the other Foreign Janua
31,2022 in the Profit Comprehensive currency 31,2023
Assets / Or Loss income Translation Assets/
(linbilities) Statement statement differences (liabilities)
UsD UsD Usb Usb USD
Actuarial gains of retirement benefit - — (380714) - (380714)
Fixed Assets {2573 834) 1609 - (52135) (2624 360)
Retained tax losses 1691 635 - - (86 331) 1605 304
Deferred Tax During the Year (882 199) 1609 {380714) {138 466) (1399 770)
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Translated from Arabic

Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies
{An Egyptian Joint stock company — Under Public Free Zones)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended January 31, 2023

c) Deferred tax assets — not recognized
Deferred tax assets related to tax losses and deductible temporary differences have
not been recognized due to the lack of an appropriate degree to ensure that there are
sufficient future tax profits through which these assets can be utilized.

d) Deferred tax liabilities - not recognized
Deferred tax liabilities related to the temporary differences of the undistributed
profits of some subsidiaries have not been recognized based on the following:

First: Most of the undistributed retained profits do not have a distribution tax, as they are
related to profits made in exempt companies (companies under the free zone system and
companies outside Egypt).

Second: Regarding the undistributed profits of companies subject to the
distribution tax in Egypt, the management of the holding company controls the
timing of disbursing these distributions, and the applied policy is to keep all the
distributable profits to be reinvested instead of resorting to financing as a resuit of
the high interest rates, which exceeded 17.25%. Thus, there is no possibility of
making dividends in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the group's policy,
according to IFRS 24, is to recognize the deferred tax related to the profits expected to be
distributed within the limits of the distribution tax on the amounts that are planned to be
distributed by the holding company in the coming years.

e) Accrued income tax

Januvary January
31,2023 31,2022
USD USD
Current income tax 1 130 666 0958 343
1130 666 958 343
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Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies

{An Egyptian Joint stock company — Under Public Free Zones)

Transiated from Arabic

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended January 31, 2023

20- Intangible assets

Trademarks ¢ od wil Total
and programs

Usbh Usb USD
Cost at February 1,2022 34 389 860 30395674 64 785 534
Additions during the year 762 952 - 762 952
Total cost 35152812 30 395 674 65 548 486

Deduct

Accumulated Amortization (20330 633) - (20 330633)
Amortization during the year (2 988399) - (2 988 399)
Foreign entities translation differences (805913) (2618 031) (3 374 500)
Net book value at January 31,2023 11027 867 27777 643 38 805 510
Cost at February 1,2021 34 389 860 31011863 65 401 723
Accumulated Amortization (16 980073) - (16 980 073)
Amortization during the year (3 350 560) - (3 350 560)
Foreign entities translation differences 713 508 (616 189) 97 319
Net book value at January 31,2022 14 772735 30 395 674 45 168 409

- Trademarks are represented in the value of the right to use trademarks in some of the

group companies.

21- Right- of- use assets — lease contracts (Net)

Total lease contracts measured at the present value
Amortization charged on consolidated statement of profit
or loss

Accumulated Amortization

Accumulated depreciation of disposals

Translation differences

Earned rental discount differences

Net lease contracts measured at the present value

28

21-1Right- of- use assets arising from commercial leasing contracts

January January
31,2023 31,2022
UsSD USD
27 763 381 28 765 884
(6 087 974) (5 521 902)

(5 521 902) -
514911 -
953 048 -
(29 102) 1 969
17 592 362 23 245951




Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies

{An Egyptian Joint stock company — Under Public Free Zones)

Translated from Arabic

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended January 31, 2023

21-2 Lease liabilities

22-

23-

Lease liabilities arising from commercial lease contracts
Adjustments

Eamned discount

New and expired contracts

Add:

Differences arising from a change in the present value
that charged on consolidated statement of profit or loss

Less:

Translation differences
Payment of lease liabilities within the year

Less:

Current portion of lease liabilities arising from
commercial leasing contracts

Notes payable {Due instailments) during the year
Total current lease liabilities

Less;

Non-current portion of lease liabilities presented in
the statements of financial position as below:
Non- Current portion of lease liabilities arising from
commercial lease contracts

Long term notes payable (Due installments)

Total Non-current lease liabilities

Work in progress

January January
31,2023 31,2022
USD USD
23 503 954 28 765 885
- (1 969)

4 032 535 -

3252 896 1 685672
30789 385 30 449 588
(5 540 809) -

(5 968 695) (6 945 634)
19 279 881 23 503 954
(5726 197) (6 708 778)

(895 253) (1 018 090)
(6 621 450) (7 726 868)
(12 578 555) (15 388 464)

(79 876) (388 622)
(12 658 431) (15777 086)

This balance amounted to USD 26 494 443 for a plot of land in the tenth of
Ramadan City of an area of about 100 acres of national housing for other activities
in accordance with the decision of the New Urban Communities Authority and its
licenses are being finalized as well as the engineering and architectural works of

the project.

Inventories

Raw materials

Packing materials

Spare parts

Work in process

Finished goods

Goods in transit

L/C's to purchase raw materials and supplies

Less:
Write off inventory

January January
31,2023 31,2022
USD USD
44 696 686 32838 185

1186 921 932115
2966 441 2983475
9536616 5953048
52335115 57 317 446
912471 1676 814
705 020 544 600
112339270 102 245 683
(2893 161) (3 344 705)
109 446 109 98 900 978




Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies
{An Egyptian Joint stock company - Under Public Free Zones)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended January 31, 2023

Translated from Arabic

24- Trade receivables and debtors

January January
31,2023 31,2022
usb Uusb
Trade receivables 33 798 256 48471 184
Notes receivables 380623 188 692
Trade payables - debit balances 7 060 620 6462 724
Deposits held with others 732 444 1 542 876
Tax authority 1 9171 505 2249 555
Prepaid expenses 2568 108 2309 239
Accrued revenues 8 844 687 5824 960
Debtors {sold companies) 44 580084 44 580 084
Other debit balances 6429 180 7235741
106 305 507 118 865 055
Less:
Expected credit loss of trade receivables and debtors (56 359 574) (55118 543)
49 945 933 63 746 512
Foreign
Balance on Provided currency Balance on
exchange
February During the Differences January
1,2022 year during the year 31,2023
USD LI5])) usb Usb
Expected credit loss of trade 55118543 1755615 (514 584) 56 359574
receivables and debtors
55118 543 1755 615 (514 584) 56 359 574
25- Cash and cash equivalents
January January
31,2023 31,2022
USD USD
Current accounts 8880513 8 169 629
Time deposits 14813513 56 113 748
Cash on hand 622 372 284 397
24 316 398 64 567 774
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Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies

{An Egyptian Joint stock company — Under Public Free Zones)

Translated from Arabic

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended January 31, 2023

26- Long-term loans and facilities

= Arafa for Investments and Consultancies
Arab African Bank: The remaining value of the
medium-term loan amounting to USD 29 971 343
granted to the company by the Arab African
Intemational Bank “SAE” to finance the purchase of
38% of the capital of Concrete Company for Ready-
made Ganmments, and the rescheduling of the
repayment of this balance has been activated. adult
loan USD 13 907 087 as of March 1, 2021 in nine
unequal semi-annual installments ending in June
2025

* Swiss Garments Company
Commercial International Bank: A medium-

term loan amounting to USD 23 919 453
granted to the company to re-transfer part of the
company’s existing obligations to the bank. The
balance of this loan is paid in seventeen unequal
semi-annual installments, due on August 30 and
February 28 of each year. The first of which is
due on August 30, 2024, and ends on August
30,2032

* Egvpt Tailoring Garments Company
On October 26, 2022, a scheduling contract for a

credit facility contract was concluded with Mashreq

Bank - Egypt, in order to schedule indebtedness

according to the following:

- Medium-term financing of 4.3 million Egyptian
pounds, to be paid in 36 monthly installments

- Medium-term financing of USD 4.9 million, to be
paid in 36 monthly installments

These loans are under a joint guarantee from Al-

Arafa Investments and Consulting Company

Balance on January 31, 2023

Balance on January 31,2022

3l

End of

Pavment

2025

2032

2025

Non-
current Current
portion portion Total
UsSD usb usp
5601229 3000000 8601229
23919 453 - 23919453
3291 078 1362868 4653 946
2811760 4362868 37174628
24 684 829 2 500 000 27 184 829




Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies

Translated from Arabic

{An Egyptian Joint stock company — Under Public Free Zones)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended January 31, 2023

27- Other long-term liabilities

Janua January
31,20 31,2022
USb USD

Installments liabilities for lease contracts 17 625 632 5262 356
Liabilities against the right to use a trademark - 3143 004
Urban Communities Authority* 21 868 392 -

39 494 025 8 405 360
Deduct
Due for payments during the year to urban
communFi)tigs LR (10934 196) ]

28 559 828 8 405 360

* This item represents the total due for a plot of land in the Al-Maarefah area on the
10th of Ramadan, according to the New Urban Communities Authority Resolution

No. (149) dated January 11, 2021,

28- Trade pavables and creditors

January January
31,2023 31,2022
UsD USD
Trade payables 18 602 633 247274215
Accrued expenses 11.166 032 9088316
Tax authority 3 348 565 4346 194
Notes payable 2547844 4234 795
Lease contracts liabilities 5726 197 6708 778
Current lease liabilities from commercial leasing contract - -
Deposits from others 1 842 052 1287 316
Receivables — credit balance 3368 080 100 441
Other credit balances 17 173 365 15 012 040
63774 76 65 052 095
29- Provisions
Balance on Add Utilized Foreign Balance on
Exchange
February During During Difference January
1, 2022 the year the year during the year 31,2023
USD USD USD USD USD
Tax and claims provisions* 353473 569 457 {121 112) (18 332) 783 486
353473 ~ 509 457 (121 112) (18 332) 783 436
Balance on Add Utilized Foreign Balance on
Exchange
Februa During During Difference January
1,2021 the year the year during the year 31,2022
USD USD USD USD USD
Tax and claims provisions* 222 894 617 515 (486 205) (731) 353473
222 894 617 515 (486 205) (731) 353 473

* The usual published information about provisions in accordance with Egyptian Accountin
Standard No. 28 "Provisions, Contingent Assets and Liabilities” was not disclose
because the Group's management believes that doing so may severely affect the outcome
of negotiations with those parties.
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Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies
(An Egyptian Joint stock company — Under Public Free Zones)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended‘January 31, 2023

30- Financial risk management

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

e  Creditrisk
o Liquidity risk
e  Market risk.

This disclosure presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the
above risks, the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and
managing risk, and the Parent Company’s management of capital. Further
quantitative disclosures are included throughout these consolidated financial
statements,

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company has overall responsibility for the
establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework. The Board
also is responsible for identifying and analyzing the risks faced by the Group, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.

The Group management aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company is assisted in its oversight role by the
Audit Committee ‘and Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad
hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the result of which are
reported to the Board of Directors.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to
a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally
from the Group’s trade and other receivables.

Trade and other receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Group’s customer base
including the default risk of the industry has less an influence on credit risk.

The Group Management has established credit policies under which each new
customer is analyzed individually for credit worthiness before the Group’s standard
payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. Customers that fail to meet
the Group’s benchmark credit worthiness may transact with the Group only on a
prepayment basis. No previous impairment loss was resulted from transactions with
trade receivables.
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Investments

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by only investing in active and liquid
securities. Management does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations.

Guarantees

The Group’s policy is to provide financial guarantees only to wholly owned
subsidiaries.

Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due.

The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it
will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both
normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Group’s reputation. Typically, the Group ensures that it has
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses for an appropriate
period including the servicing of financial obligations, this excludes the potential
impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as
natural disasters.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates,
interest rates and equity prices will affect the Group’s income or the value of its
hoidings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimizing the return.

Currency risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk on borrowings that are denominated in a

currency other than the respective functional currencies of Group entities, primarily
the Egyptian Pound.

Interest on borrowings is denominated in currencies that match the cash flows
generated by the underlying operations of the Group. This provides an economic

hedge and no derivatives are entered into.

The Company’s investments in other subsidiaries are not hedged as those currency
positions are considered to be long-term in nature.
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Interest rate risk

The Group adopts a policy of ensuring that the exposure to changes in interest rates
on borrowings is on fixed rate basis. The Company does not enter into interest rate
swap.

Other market price risk
Equity price risk arises from equity instruments measured at fair value through

other comprehensive income and management of the Group monitors the equity
securities in its investment portfolio based on market indices.

Material investments within the portfolio are managed on an individual basis and all
buy and sell decisions are approved by the Board of Directors of the Parent
Company.

The primary goal of the Group’s investment strategy is to maximize investment
returns. Management is assisted by external advisors in this regard.

In accordance with this strategy certain investments are designated as held for
trading investments because their performance is actively monitored, and they are
managed on a fair value basis.

Capital management
The Group policy is to maintain a strong capital base to maintain investors,

creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business.

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company monitors the return on capital,
which the Company defines as net profit for the period divided by total
shareholders’ equity, the Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividends to
shareholders.

The Board of the Parent Company seeks to maintain a balance between the higher
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the

period; the Parent Company is not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.
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Currency risk

Currency risk exposure

The Group exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows based on original
currencies.

January 31, 2023

Surplus / (Deficit) Surplus / (Deficit)

January January
31, 2023 31, 2022
Usb Usb
usD (26 876 400) (1 620 500)
EGP 54 179 765 972 277 489
EURO (3944 971) (7 647 632)
GBP 10 870 150 9 204 651

The following is the average exchange rates during the year:

Closing exchange rate Average exchange rate
January January January January
31, 2023 31, 2022 31, 2023 31, 2022
EGP 0.0403 0.0634 0.0516 0.0635
EURO 1.0640 1,1161 1.0506 1.1774
GBP 1.2326 1.3403 1.2189 1.3760
AED 0.2723 0.2723 0.2723 0.2723

Interest rate risk

The general interest rate structure for the Group's financial instruments at the date of
the consolidated financial statements is shown as follows: -

January January
31, 2023 31, 2022
UsbD UsD
Financial liabilities at fixed rate 18 304 752 22 097 242
Financial liabilities at variable rate 192 406 068 221 198 820
210 710 820 243 296 062

To Limit these risks, the management of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
is working to obtain the best conditions available in the banking market for credit
facility balances and loan balances, while replacing loans and credit facilities with a
medium-term syndicated financing loan in accordance with the Holding Company's
financing policy, and it also periodically reviews the prevailing interest rates in the
banking market.
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iif) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one of the parties to the financial instruments will not
fulfill its obligations and expose the other party to financial losses.
The Group's financial assets consist of clients represented in the amounts owed by
them, term deposits, savings certificates and financial investment balances. These
financial assets do not represent a significant risk focus. Customers are distributed
in a variety of sectors. There is strict credit control and impairment losses are
appropriately recognized. The Company manages the credit risk related to
investments by ensuring that the investments are formed after careful assessment of
the credit risk of those investments.
Time deposits with commercial banks are linked after a careful assessment of the
credit risk of these banks.
Maximum exposure to credit risk in USD at the date of the consolidated financial

statements.
January January
31, 2023 31,2022
USD UsD
Financial investments at fair value through other 1484716 5 065 326
comprehensive income
Debtors and other debit balances 45 466 320 59 187 718
Due from related parties 2479 273 1 130 053
Cash at banks and in safe 23 694 026 64 283 377

Fair value estimate

An approximation of nominal fair value less any estimated credit adjustments to
financial assets and liabilities with maturity dates of less than one year is assumed.
For disclosure purposes, the company's interest rates for similar financial
instruments are used to deduct future contractual cash flows to assess the fair value
of financial obligations.

To assess the fair value of non-current financial instruments, the company uses
many methods and makes the assumptions set out on market conditions at the date
of each financial position statement. Market prices and customer prices for financial
management or similar instrument are used for long-term debt. Other methods, such
as the estimated current value of future cash flows, are used to determine the fair
value of the rest of the financial instruments. At year end, the fair value of non-
current obligations is not materially different from their book value.

Investments

a Fair value is determined on the basis of the declared market rates at the date of the
financial position, without deducting transaction-related costs, except for
investments in equity recognized at cost and mentioned above, less impairment loss
(if any).

Interest facilities ) ] N
Fair value 1s calculated on the basis of deduction of cash flow for the principal
amount and expected future interest.

Debtors and creditors
The nominal value of debtors and creditors with a residual useful life of less than
one year reflects the fair value.

Interest rate used to determine fair value )
The company uses the rate of return applicable in the history of the financial
position as well as a regular credit distribution to deduct the financial instruments.
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31- Capital

31-1 The Authorized Capital
The authorized capital is 150 million USD (one hundred and fifty million USD),
and this was noted in the commercial registry on November 13, 2006.

31-2 Issued and paid-up capital
The issued and paid-up capital of the company consists of 470,250,000 nominal
shares with a value of 20 US cents per share and the issued capital amounting to
94,050 000 US dollars is fully paid, which is the sum of the net equity in the
merging company according to the report of the committee formed by the General
Authority for Investment and Free Zones pursuant to a decision Mr. / CEO of the
General Authority for Investment and Free Zones No. 127 of 2019.

The decision of the committee formed by the General Authority for Investment
and Free Zones approved on July 1, 2019 was issued licensing the merger of Al-
Arafa Investments and Consulting Company {an Egyptian joint stock company) a
merging company with the Arafa Company for Investment in the Spinning,
Weaving and Textiles Industry (an Egyptian joint stock company) a free zone
(merged company). Al Arafa Company for Investment in the Ready-made
Garments Industry (Egyptian Joint Stock Company) Free Zone (merging
company) and Al Arafa Company for Investment in the Marketing and
Distribution of Readymade Garments (Egyptian Joint Stock Company) Free Zone
(merging company) with book values according to the financial statements of the
merging and merging companies on 31 October 2018. taken as a basis for the
merger. The net equity of Arafa Investments and Consulting, the merging
company, on October 31, 2018, was determined at an amount of 146 935 721 US
dollars {one hundred forty-six million nine hundred thirty-five thousand seven
hundred and twenty-one US dollars), and the net minority interest in the Arafa
Company for Investment in the Ready-made Garments Industry, a merging
company, a deficit in the amount of 31 971 885 US dollars (thirty-one million
nine hundred seventy-one eight hundred and eighty-five US dollars} and Al-Arafa
Company. for Investment in the Spinning, Weaving and Fabrics Industry, a
merged company, an amount of 16,753 US dollars (sixteen thousand seven
hundred and fifty-three US dollars) afier excluding the value of the investments of
Al-Arafa Investments And consultancy (the merging company) in the Arafa
Company for Investment in the Spinning, Weaving and Fabrics Industry (the
merged company), amounting to 2, 077,340 US dollars (only two million seventy-
seven thousand three hundred and forty US dollars, and Al-Arafa Investment
Company in the marketing and distribution of ready-made garments (Egyptian
Joint stock company) (merging company) a deficit of 3,896,892 US dollars (three
million eight hundred ninety-six thousand eight hundred ninety-two US dollars.

And in accordance with the decision of the company’s extraordinary general
assembly on August 4, 2019, in which the decision of the committee formed by the
authority was approved on the basis of the book values of the merging and merged
companies on October 31, 2018, which is the date taken as the basis for the merger
and the approval to keep the authorized capital of Arafa Investments and Consulting
(the merging company) before the merger, amounting to 150 million US dollars, as
well as the issued and paid-in capital of the Arafa Investments and Consulting
Company (the merging company) before the merger, amounting to 94 050 000 US
dollars, and the total net equity value of each of the merging company and the
merging companies amounting to an amount of 111 083 697 US dollars and the
difference of 17,033,697 US dollars is calculated in the merging company's reserves.

38



Translated from Arabic

Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies
(An Egyptian Joint stock company — Under Public Free Zones)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended January 31, 2023

32- Reserves

Balance on Balance on
January January
31,2023 31,2022
Usb Usb

Legal reserve 24 666 360 24 666 360
General reserve 10 615 029 10 615 029
Other reserves (treasury bills reserve) 742418 742418

36 023 807 36 023 807

Legal reserve
According to the requirements of the companies' laws and the articles of association

of the group companies, 5% of the annual net profit of the companies is set aside to
form the statutory reserve until it reaches 50% of the issued capital of each
company. No distribution is made from this reserve, but it can be used to increase
capital or reduce losses.

General reserve

The general reserve represents the value set aside from the profits of the group
companies in previous years in accordance with the decision of the general
assembly of the shareholders of those companies. This reserve is used by a decision
of the general assembly based on the proposal of the board of directors of each
company in what fulfills the interests of the company.

Translation differences reserve

The translation differences reserve represents the value of the accumulated
differences resulting from the translation of the financial statements of the subsidies
from foreign currencies to US dollars in addition to their share in the accumulated
translation differences listed in the equity of affiliate companies.

33- The_difference resulting from the acquisition of subsidiaries (under joint

control)

The company purchased the shares of some of its subsidiaries, which were
controlled by the shareholders of the holding company and the Swiss Company for
Ready-made Garments - a subsidiary - and the difference between the purchase cost
and its share in the net shareholders' equity of these companies was treated in the
equity statement in the consolidated financial statements with a value of 28 103 401
USD.
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34- Non — controlling equity;

The following table provides information about each subsidiary with non —
controlling interests that are material to the group:

Subsidiary’s name Controlling percentage
January January
31,2023 31, 2022
Concrete Garments Company 8.36% 8.36%
Swiss Cotton Garments 0.8% 0.8%
Egypt Tailoring Garments company 0.6% 0.6%
Crystal for Making shirts 0.09% 0.09%
Fashion Industry garments company 10.2% 10.2%
Egypt Portugal Marketing Company 41% 41%
EP Garments Company 40% 40%
Euromed for trading & marketing Company 2.79% 2.79%
White Head Spinning Company 55.9% 55.9%
Port Said Garments Company 2.83% 2.83%
Swiss Garments Company 0.8% 0.8%
Baird Group 1.85% 1.85%
Al Arafa for real estate investment 0.8% 0.8%
Savini Garments Company 0.8% 0.8%

- The voting rights percentage of the non — controlling shares are the same as the
ownership percentage of the non — controlling shares.

The following is the movement of the non — controlling equity:

Retained earnings Total
USD Usb
The balance at the beginning of February 2021 3654 446 3 654 446
Comprehensive income for the year 129 347 129 347
The balance at January 31, 2022 3783 793 3783793
The balance at the beginning of February 2022 3783793 3783793
Dividends for employees (10 183) (10 183)
Comprehensive income for the year (914 038) (914 038)
The balance at January 31, 2023 2 859572 2 859 572

35- Tax position

35-1 Al Arafa for Investments and Consultancies Company
As mentioned in the Company's tax card, the Company and dividends are not

subject to tax laws and duties applied in Egypt under article No. 35 of law No.8 of
1997 which replaced by article No. 41 of law 72 of 2017.

The company was inspected for the payroll tax from the beginning of the activity
to 2013, and the final tax assessment was made.

The years 2014-2018 are under inspection and the tax due has been paid, the tax
deducted is paid monthly on legal dates.

The company provides the withholding tax to the Central Department of
withholding tax under the tax account on legal dates.
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36- Related Parties

The related parties are the shareholders of the Company and the companies in
which they own shares, whether directly or indirectly, and the senior management
members of the Company, which gives them significant influence or control over
these companies. The group companies carry out many transactions with related
parties and these transactions are carried out in accordance with the conditions set
by the board of directors in those companies which do not differ with the count
parts of those transactions with others and the most important of these transactions
are as follows:

The following is a summary of the most significant transactions concluded during
the current year between the company and the related parties.

36-1 Due from related parties

Value of transactions Balance on
31Janvary 31 January Balanceon31! Balance on3l
Type of 2023 2022 January 2023 January 2022
Company’s Name transactions UsD. USD USD USD
* METCO Service 164 557 1150 912054 1076611
o Euro Egypt Sales 19 525 4 647 33917 53442
o GTW Current - - 1533302

2479273 1130053

36-2 Due to related parties

Value of transactions Balance on
31Janvary  31January Balanceon31 Balance on3l
Type of 2023 2022 January 2023  January 2022
Company’s Name  (ransactions USD USD USD USD
o GTW Current 168573 (1172 545) — 168 573

- 168 573

37- Capital commitments
The capital commitments as of January 31, 2023 with amount 1 462 053 USD.

38- Contingent liabilities

In addition to amounts taken into account in the elements of the consolidated
financial statements, there are contingent liabilities represented in the value of
letters of credit and letters of guarantee issued by the banks of the holding
company and subsidiary companies in favor of others outstanding at the end of the
fiscal year amounted to USD 14 021 055.

39- Retirement benefit

Based on the decision of the management of Bird Group Company (subsidiary), it
has been decided to adopt a retirement benefits system for employees of Bird
Group in England (one of the subsidiaries) so that the company's employees
benefit from it at the end of their service period in the company, in accordance
with the conditions specified in the regulations approved by the company's
management.
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39-1 Emplovees retirement benefits

January Januwary
31, 2023 31, 2022
UsD USD
Net Asscts of Employees Defined benefits plan 24 797 447 39 741 235
Total asscts of employees benefit 24 797 447 39 741 235
Net liabilities ol Employees Delined benefits plan 21220 442 33432 443
Total liabilities of employees benefit 21 220 442 33 432 443
Non-Current 21 220 442 33432443
39-2 Emplovees Benefit movement assets / (liabilities)
Assets Liabilities Net
UsDh UsSD UsD
Balance at 31, January 2021 41 779 320 (37 517 040) 4262 280
Company’s share 665 184 - 665 184
Imployees” share | 386 (1 386) -
Benefits payments (3 973 089) 3973 089 —
38 472 801 (33 345337) 4927 464
Amounts recognized in the profit and loss statement at January 31, 2022
Current service cost - (372 780) (372 780
Interest cost 601 437 (537 690) 63 747
61 437 (910 470) (309 033)
Amount recognized at the other comprehensive income statement at January 31, 2022:
Assets Liabilitics Net
ush Ush USD
Actuarial profit/(loss) (66 518) [ 758 580 1 692 062
Translation diffcrences 733515 (735216) (1 7000
Balance at 31 January,2022 39 741 235 {33 432 443) 6 308 793
Company’s share 613216 - 613216
Benclits payments (1173110 (1173 110) --
39 181 341 (32 259 333) 6 922 008
Amounts recognized in the profit or loss statement at 31 January 2023
Current service cost - - -
Interest cost 767 126 (637 454) 129672
767 126 (637 454) 129 672
Amount recognized at the other comprehensive income statement at January 31, 2023:
Assets Liabilitics Net
UsD UusDh USD
Actuarial profit/(loss) (11760 181) 8 829 831 (2930350)
Translation differences (3 390 839) 2846516 (544 323)
Balanee at 31 January, 2023 24 797 447 (21220 440) 3 577007
39-3 Important actuarial assumptions used in calculating benefits accerding to the actuary’s study
= [iscount raic 4.60% 2.15%
¢ Inflation 3.10% 3.60%
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40- Significant accounting policies applied

The Group has consistently applied the following accounting policies during all
financia! periods presented in these consolidated financial statements.

40-1 Basis of consolidation

Business combinations

- The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when
control is transferred to the Group.

- The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at fair
value, as are the identifiable net assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is tested
annually for impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase is recognized in profit or
loss immediately.

- Acquisition costs (Transaction costs) are expensed as incurred and services
received, except if related to the issue of debt or equity securities.

- The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement
of pre-existing relationships between the acquirer and acquired entity. Such
amounts are generally recognized in profit or loss.

- Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition.
If an obligation to pay contingent consideration that meets the definition of a
financial instrument is classified as equity, then it is not remeasured, and
settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, other contingent
consideration is remeasured at fair value at each reporting date and subsequent
changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognized in profit
or loss.

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.

The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity.

The financial statements of subsidiaries controlled are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control on which control commences until
the date that control ceases.

Non-controlling interests
Non-controlling interest are measured initially at their proportionate share of the
acquirer’s identifiable net acquired assets.

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions.
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Loss of control

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary, and any related NCI and other comprehensive income.
Any resulting gain or loss is recognized in in profit or loss. Any interests retained
in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost.

Equity — accounted investees

The Group’s equity-accounted investees comprise interests in associates
Companies and joint ventures.

And has no rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to an
arrangement.

Associate Companies are companies in which the Group has significant influence
over financial and operating policies but does not extend to be a control or a joint
venture.

A joint venture is when the Group has rights only to the net assets of the
arrangements,

Investments in associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method and are recognized initially at cost. The cost of the investments includes
transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement in the consolidated financial statements by increasing or
decreasing the carrying value of the investment by the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and OCI items of the equity-accounted investees, until the date that
significant influence ceases\ joint control is stopped.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses
arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated.

Unrealized gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted investees are
eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but
onlly to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment of transferred asset
value,

40-2 Foreign currency transactions
Foreign transactions in the functional currency of the pgroup companies are
translated at the exchange rate on the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at
the exchange rate at the date of preparing the financial statements.

Assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated at the exchange rate used when determining the fair value.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
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Generally, currency differences are recognized in the consolidated statement of
income. Excluding, currency differences arising from translation are recognized in
other comprehensive income:

- Investments available for sale in equity instruments (except for impairment, where
currency differences are reclassified to other comprehensive income items in the
consolidated statement of income).

- The financial obligations that have been designated as a risk coverage tool to
cover the risk of net investment in a foreign activity, as long as the coverage is
effective.

- Hedging instruments used for cash flow risk as long asthe hedge is effective.

- On an exceptional basis, the Egyptian Cabinet agreed to deal with the exceptional
economic decision related to moving the exchange rate by setting an additional
option for Paragraph No. (28) of the amended Egyptian Accounting Standard No.
(13) “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates,” which requires
recognition of currency differences. Within the statement of profits or losses for
the period in which these differences arise, so that the standard allows the
recognition of debit and credit currency differences on the translation of assets
and liabilities of monetary nature in foreign currencies existing at the end of the
fiscal year within the items of other comprehensive income in accordance with
Paragraph No. (9) of the appendix to the standard amendment, Paragraph No. (10)
of the amendment also made it possible to include the amount of currency
differences resulting from the retranslation of monetary items, which were
presented in the items of other comprehensive income in accordance with
Paragraph No. (9) of this appendix, in the profits or losses carried forward at the
end of the financial period for applying The specific treatment contained in this
Appendix.

Foreign operations
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and

adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated at the exchange rates at the
reporting date. Revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated into
US Dollar at the exchange rates at dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognized in OCI items and the accumulated
balance in the translation differences reserve, excluding the translation differences
allocated to non-controlling interests.

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its entirety or partially such that
control, significant influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative amount in the
translation reserve related to that foreign operation is reclassified to the
consolidated income statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

If the Group disposes of part of its interest in a subsidiary but retains control, then
the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to NCI.

When the Group disposes of only part of an associate or joint venture while
retaining significant influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the
cumulative amount is reclassified to the consolidated income statement.
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40-3 Financial instruments

1) Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are

originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing
component} or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an
item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue, A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

2) Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortized
cost; FVOCI — debt investment; FVOCI - equity investment; or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless
the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case
all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting
period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
= It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
future cash flows.
- Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
- It is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets .
- Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s
fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as
described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial
assets. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at
FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.
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Financial assets- Business Model Assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a
financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the
business is managed, and information is provided to management. The
information considered includes:

- The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those
policies in practice. These include whether management’s strategy focuses on
earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realizing cash flows through the sale of the
assets;

- How the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group’s
management; and

- 'The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial
assets held within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

- How managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is
based on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows
collected; and

- The frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the
reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for
derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the
Group’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets — Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely
payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the
ﬁnanciarasset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the
time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the Frincipal amount
outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and
costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely Fayments of principal
and interest, the Group considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This
includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that
could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would
not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Group considers:

- Contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- Terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate
features;

- Prepayment and extension features; and

- Terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-
recourse features).
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A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and
interest criterion if the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include

reasonable additional

compensation for early termination of the contract.

Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount or premium to its
contractual per amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount
that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid)
contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for
early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the
prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets — Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

“Financial assets
classified at
FVTPL

Financial assets at
amortized cost

Equity investments
at FVOCI

Debt investments
at FVOCI

Financial assets at FVIPL arc measured at fair value.
Changes in the fair value, including any interest or
dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. The amortized cost is
reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized
in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognized in profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Dividends are recognized as income in profit or loss unless
the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are
i’ecognized in OCI and are never reclassified to profit or
0SS.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Interest income calculated using the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognized in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognized in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities — Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and

losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A
financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it
is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities
at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or
1

loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in pro

t or loss.
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3) Derecognition

Financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its
statement of financial position but retains either all or substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not
derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled or expire. The Group also derecognizes a financial
liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability
are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognized at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying
amount extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.

4) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in

the statement of financial position when, and only when, the Group currently has
a_legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle
them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

40-4 Financial Derivatives and Hedge Accounting
The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge foreign currency and
interest rate risks. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and
accounted for separately if the host contract is not a financial asset and certain
criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Following initial recognition,
derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally
recognized in profit or loss.

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments to hedge against
the variability in cash flows associated with forecast transactions with a high
probability resulting from changes in foreign exchange rates and interest rates
and some derivatives and non-derivative financial liabilities as a hedge of foreign
exchange risk on a net investment in a foreign operation.
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40-5 Share capital

Ordinary shares

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are
recognized as a deduction from equity. Income tax relating to transaction costs of
an equity transaction are accounted for in accordance with EAS 24 "Income Tax".

Repurchase and re-issue of ordinary share (treasury shares)

When shares recognized as equity are repurchased, the amount of the
consideration paid, which includes directly attributable costs.is recognized as a
deduction from equity. Repurchased shares are classified as treasury shares and
are presented in the treasury share reserve. When treasury shares are sold or
reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognized as an increase in equity
and the resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is presented within share
premium.

Dividends
Dividends are recognized as a liability in the period in which they are declared.

40-6 Impairment

1) Non-derivative financial assets

Financial instruments and contract assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances for ECLs on:
- Financial assets measured at amortized cost;
- Debt investments measured at FVOCI; and
-~ Contract assets.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except
for the following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

- dDebt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting
ate; and
- Other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of
default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition.
- Loss allowances for trade receivables and lease receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly if it is more than 30 days past due.
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The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- The debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as releasing security (if any is
held); or

- The financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The Group considers a debt security to have low credit risk when its credit risk
rating is equivalent to the globally understood definition of ‘investment grade’.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the
expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating [ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at
amortized cost and debt securities at FVOCI are credit impaired. A financial asset
is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following
observable data:

- Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- A breach of contract such as a default or being more than 120 days past due;

- The restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group
would not consider otherwise;

- It is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization; or

- The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial
difficulties.
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Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted
from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is
recognized in OCI.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a
portion thereof. For individual customers, the Group has a policy of writing off
the gross carrying amount when the financial asset is two years past due based on
historical experience of recoveries of similar assets. For corporate customers, the
Group individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of
write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The
Group expects no significant recovery from the amount written off. However,
financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities
in order to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

2) Non-financial assets
At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-
financial assets (other than inventories, work in progress, and deferred tax assets)
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested
annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. Goodwill arising from a
business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. They are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to
reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized in the
previous years.
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40-7 Property, plant & equipment &Depreciation

i) Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment.

Any gain and loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment is recognized
in consolidated statement of income.

ii} Subseguent costs
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future

economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

iif) Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and
equipment less their estimated residual values using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives for each type of property, plant and equipment, and is
generally recognized in consolidated statement of income and other
comprehensive income. Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for current and
comparative periods are as follows:

Asset Years
Buildings & constructions 5-50
Machinery & equipment 33-10
Vehicles and transportation 5

Tools & supplies 2-10
Furniture & office equipment 2-16.67
Lease improvements 5-10

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

40-8 Projects under construction

Projects under construction are recognized initially at cost. Cost includes all
expenditures directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for
its intended use. Projects under construction are transferred to property, plant and
equipment caption when they are completed and are ready for their intended use.
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40-9 L.ease contracts

I- Determining whether the arrangement contains a lease contract or not

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease.

[nitially or when evaluating any arrangement that contains a contract lease, the
Group separates the payments and the other consideration which are required by
the arrangement of the lease and those of other elements based on their relative
fair values. If the Group concludes with a finance lease that it is not possible to
separate the payments in a reliable manner, then the asset and the liability are
recognized at an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset; Then the
liability is reduced when the payments is fulfilled, and the finance cost calculated
on the obligation is recognized using the Group's additional borrowing rate.

2-  Leased assets

Lease contracts for property, plant and equipment that are transferred in a large
degree to the Group, all of the risks and rewards associated with the property are
classified as finance leases. Leased assets are initially measured at an amount equal
to the fair value of the fair value and the present value of the minimum lease
payments, whichever is less. After initial recognition, the assets are accounted for
according to the accounting policy applied to that asset.

Assets held under other contracts leases are classified as operating contracts leases
and are not recognized in the Group's statement of financial position.

3- Lease pavments

Operating leases’ payments are recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease. Received lease incentives are recognized as an integral
part of the total lease expense, over the lease term.

The minimum lease payments of finance leases are divided between financing
expenses and the reduction of unpaid liabilities. Finance charges are charged for
each period during the lease period to reach a fixed periodic interest rate on the
remaining balance of the obligation.

4- Lessor books
When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at the inception of the lease whether
each lease is or not a lease or operating lease.
To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the lease
has been transferred substantially all the risk and reward incidental to ownership of
the underlying asset.

If so, the lease is an indirect lease; If not, it is an operating lease. As part of this
assessment, the Group considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is in
place for the principal part of the economic age of the asset.
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Where the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its share of the main
lease and sublease separately. It assesses the classification of a sublease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the main lease, not with reference to
the underlying asset. If the lease is a short-term lease for which the Group applies
the above exemption, then the sublease is classified as an operating lease. If the
arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Group applies IFRS 15
to the consideration allocation in the contract.

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment requirements of IFRS 9 to the
net investment in the lease. The Group also regularly reviews the unsecured
estimates of the residual values used in calculating the total investment in the lease.

The Group recognizes lease payments received under operating leases as income
on a straight-line basis over the lease term as part of 'other income'.

40-100perating profit

Operating profit is the result generated from the continuing principal revenue-
producing activities of the Group as well as other income and expenses related to
operating activities. Operating profit excludes net finance costs, the share equity-
accounted investees, and income taxes.

40-11Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the
Group has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-
performance risk.

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the
measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and
liabilities.

When one is available, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument using
the quoted price in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as
‘active’ if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency
and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Group uses valuation
techniques that maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the
use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all the
factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then
the Group measures assets and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short
positions at an ask price.
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The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition
is normally the transaction price — i.e., the fair value of the consideration given or
received. If the Group determines that the fair value on initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price
in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation
technique for which any unobservable inputs are judged to be insignificant in
relation to the measurement, then the financial instrument is initially measured at
fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value on initial
recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognized
in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later
than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data, or the
transaction is closed out.

40-12 Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries. Goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Impairment of goodwill is not reversed
subsequently. In case of gain on bargain purchase it is directly recognized
immediately in the income statement.

Research and development
Expenditure on research activities is recognized as expense when incurred.

Development expenditure is capitalized only if the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during the development period can be measured reliably, a
technical feasibility study is available to complete the intangible asset, making it
available for sale or to use, future economic benefits are probable from the
intangible asset, and the availability of sufficient technical, financial, and other
resources to complete development and to use or sell the intangible asset. Intent
availability to complete the intangible asset to use or sell, the ability to use or sell
the intangible asset. Otherwise, it is recognized as expense when incurred.
Subsequent to initial recognition, development expenditure is measured at cost
less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets are recognized, including deferred income expenditures,
the right to use, other assets in which they have definite useful lives are measured
at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

56



Translated from Arabic

Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies
{An Egyptian Joint stock company — Under Public Free Zones)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended January 31, 2023

Subsequent expenditures

Subsequent expenditure on capitalized intangible assets is capitalized only when it
increases the future economic benefits which relates to research and development
projects under implementation that recognized as an intangible asset. All other
expenditures including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands
are expensed as incurred.

Amortization

Amottization is calculated to write off the cost of iintangible assets less their
estimated residual values using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives and is generally recognized in the consolidated statement of income.
Goodwill is not amortized.

40-13Works in _progress

All expenditures directly attributable to works in process are included in work in
process account till the completion of these works. They are transferred to
completed residential units ready for sale caption when they are completed. Work
in process are stated at the balance sheet date at lower of cost and net realizable
value. It includes all direct costs that related to preparation of units to sell it and in
the assigned purpose.

40-14 Inventories

Inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of
inventories is based on the moving average principle and cost includes
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing it to its existing
location and condition. Cost of finished goods and work in process inventories
includes an appropriate share of production overheads.

40-15 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of preparing the consolidated statement of cash flows, "cash &
cash equivalents" comprises cash at banks & on hand, time deposits with
maturities of three months or less, also treasury bills due within three months, and
bank overdrafts deducted.

40-16_Provisions
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-
tax rate that refiects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the carrying amount of the
provision resulting from the use of the discount to figure out the present value,
which reflects the passage of time, is recognized as a finance cost.
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40-17Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized by the group based on five

step modules as identified in EAS No. 48:

Step 1: Determine the contract {contracts) with customer: A contract is defined as
an agreement between two or more parties that meets the rights and obligations
based on specified standards which must be met for each contract.

Step 2: Determine the performance obligations in contract: Performance
obligations is a consideration when the goods and services are delivered.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: Transaction price is the compensation
amount that the Group expects to recognize to receive for the transfer of goods or
services to customer, except for the collected amounts on behalf of other parties.

Step 4: Allocation of the transaction price of the performance obligations in the
contract: If the service concession arrangement contains more than one
performance obligation, the Group will allocate the transaction price on each
performance obligation by an amount that specifies an amount against the contract
in which the Group expects to receive in exchange for each performance
obligation satisfaction.

Step 5: Revenue recognition when the entity satisfies its performance obligations.

The Group satisfy the performance obligation and recognize revenue over time, if
one of the following criteria is met: -

- Group performance does not arise any asset that has an alternative use of the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to pay for completed performance
until the date.

- The Group arise or improves a customer-controlled asset when the asset is arise or
improved.

- The customer receives and consumes the benefits of Group performance at the
same time as soon as the group has performed.

For performance obligations, if one of the above conditions is met, revenue is
recognized in the period in which the Group satisfies performance obligation.

When the Group satisfies performance obligation by providing the services
promised, it creates an asset based on payment for the contract performance
obtained, when the amount of the contract received from customer exceeds the
amount of the revenue recognized, resulting advance payments from the customer
(contractual obligation)
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Revenue is recognized to the extent that is potential for the flow of economic
benefits to the Group, revenue and costs can be measured reliably, where
appropriate.

The application of Egyptian Accounting Standard No. 48 requires management to
use the following judgements:

Satisfaction of performance obligation

The Group should assess all contracts with customers to determine whether
performance obligations are satisfied over a period of time or at a point in time in
order to determine the appropriate method for revenue recognition. The Group
estimated that, and based on the agreement with customers, the Group does not
arise asset has alternative use to the Group and usually has an enforceable right to
pay it for completed performance to the date.

In these circumstances, the Group recognizes revenue over a period of time, and if
that is not the case, revenue is recognized at a point in time for the sale of goods,
and revenue is usually recognized at a point in time.

Determine the transaction price

The Group has to determine the price of the transaction in its agreement with
customers, using this judgement, the Group estimates the impact of any variable
contract price on the contract due to discount, fines, any significant financing
component in the contract, or any non-cash contract.

Control transfer in contracts with customers

If the Group determines the performance obligations satisfaction at a point of time,
revenue is recognized when control of related contract’ assets are transferred to the
customer.

In addition, the application of Egyptian Accounting Standard No. 48 has
resulted in:

Allocation of the transaction price of performance obligation in contracts with
customers

The Group elected to apply the input method to allocate the transaction price to
performance obligations accordingly that revenue is recognized over a period of
time, the Group considers the use of the input method, which requires recognition
of revenue based on the Group's efforts to satisfy performance obligations,
provides the best reference to the realized revenue. When applying the input
method, the Group estimates efforts or inputs to satisfy a performance obligation,
In addition to the cost of satisfying a contractual obligation with customers, these
estimates include the time spent on service contracts.
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Other matters to be considered

Variable consideration if the consideration pledged in a contract includes a variable
amount, then the Group shall estimate the amount of the consideration in which it
has a right in exchange for transferring the goods or services pledged to the
customer, the Group estimates the transaction price on contracts with the variable
consideration using the expected value or the most likely amount method. this
method is applied consistently throughout the contract and for identical types of
contracts.

The significant funding component

The Group shall adjust the amount for the contract pledged for the time value of
the cash if the contract has a significant funding component.

Revenue recognition

Sale of goods revenue

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the
associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no
continuing management involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably. For export sales, transfer of risks and rewards of the
goods sold occurs according to the shipping terms.

Services revenue

Service revenue is recognized when the service is rendered to customers. No
revenue is recognized if there is uncertainty for the consideration or its associated
costs.

Rental income
Rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Gain on sale of investments

Gain on sale of financial investments are recognized when ownership transfers to
the buyer, based on the difference between the sale price and its carrying amount at
the date of the sale.

40-18Expenses

i)  Cost of Borrowing

- The borrowing cost represented in interest expense and bank charges are
recognized in the consolidated profits or losses statement for using prevailing
interest rate (available) based on the accrual basis.

- Borrowing costs which are directly related to acquisition, construction or
production of fixed asset are capitalized as part of the assets carrying value and
depreciated over its estimated useful life, the cost of borrowing is capitalized as a
part of the fixed asset cost when the actual expenditure of the asset starts and
during the period the company incurs such costs, the borrowing costs capitalization
ceases during the year where the preparation of the asset temporarily stops or when
the asset is ready for its intended use.
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if) Social insurance contribution
The Company contributes to the government social insurance system for the
benefit of its personnel in accordance with the social insurance law. Under this
law, the employees and the employer contribute into the system on a fixed
percentage - of - salaries basis. The Company’s liability is confined to the
amount of its contribution. Contributions are charged to the consolidated profits
or losses statement according to the accrual basis.

iii) Income tax

The Group has determined that interest and penalties related to income taxes,
including uncertain tax liabilities, do not meet the definition of income taxes and
are therefore accounted for under 1AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets.

Current income tax

Current taxes for the current and prior periods which have not yet been paid are
recognized as a liability. If the taxes were actually paid in the current and prior
periods exceed the amount due for these periods, then this increase is recognized as
an asset. The value of current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior
periods are measured by the value expected to be paid to (recovered from) the tax
authority, Using the applicable tax rates (and effective tax laws) or in the process
of being issued on the financial period ended. Current tax also includes any tax
arising from dividends. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain
criteria are met.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts

used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is recognized for all temporary differences
that are expected to be taxed except for the following:

o  Temporary differences in the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that does not affect
accounting or taxable profits or losses.

e  Temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries, associates, and
joint arrangements to the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

e  Taxable temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of
goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and
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deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be used. Temporary differences on
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

Future taxable profits are determined based on business plans for individual
subsidiaries in the Group. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits that allows for the deferred tax asset to be absorbed.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to
temporary differences when using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

40-19Defined benefit plan

Baird Group (a subsidiary based in England) operates a defined benefit plan for its
employees. This plan is funded. The cost of providing benefits under a benefit plan
is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements, which include actuarial gains or losses, are recognized
immediately in the statement of financial position and the counterparty is either a
debit or credit of the retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the
period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods.

Past service cost is recognized as an expense on one of the following dates,
whichever comes first:

* When a modification or downsizing of the system occurs. And

+ When the entity recognizes related restructuring costs.

The Company calculates the net interest expense by applying a discount rate to the
benefits asset and liability. The company recognizes the changes in the assets and
liabilities of the following benefits under “cost of revenue” and “administrative and
general expenses” in the profit or loss statement {according to the functional
classification):

= Service costs, which include current service costs, past service costs, curtailment
gains and losses, non-routine adjustments

* Net interest expense.

40-20Basic / diluted earnings per share of profit

Basic / diluted eamings per share of profit is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company (After excluding the
employees' profit share and the remuneration of the Board of Directors members)
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.
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40-21_The General Authority for Investment and Free Zones (GAFT) fees
For the Group Companies which established under the provisions of the Investment
law and according to the Free Zone System, their profits are not subject to income
tax, However, according to the Investment Law, a charge of [% of the total
revenues of these Companies is due to the General Authority for investment and is
calculated and charged on the consolidated income statement according to the
accrual basis.

40-22Finance income and costs

The Group’s finance income and finance costs include:

- Interest income.

- Interest expense.

- Dividends paid

- Net gain or loss on disposal of investments in debt securities measured at
FVOCI

- Net gain or loss on financial assets at FVTPL.

- Foreign currency gains or losses from financial assets and financial liabilities.
Impairment losses {and recoveries) on investments in debt securities carried at
amortized cost or other comprehensive income,

- Loss of the fair value of the contingent consideration classified as a financial

liability.

Ineffective hedge recognized in profit or loss. And

Reclassification of net gains and losses previously recognized in other

comprehensive income on cash flow hedges of interest rate risk and foreign
currency risk

Interest income or expense is recognized using the effective interest method.
Dividend income is recognized in’ profit or loss on the date on which the Group’s
right to receive payment is established.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- The gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

- The amortized cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to
the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to
the amortized cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become
credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset. If the
asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to
the gross basis.
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40-23Reserves

- In accordance with the requirements of the companies’ law and the bylaw of the
Group companies, 5% of the net profit is deducted annually to form a non-
distributed statutory reserve. Such amounts shall be discontinued when the
balance of the statutory reserve equals 50% of the issued share capital of the
company. When the reserve balance falls below the mentioned rate, it is necessary
to go back to deducting it again.

41- Important events

On December 27, 2022, Prime Minister Decision No.4 705 of 2022 was issued to0
amend some provisions of Egyptian Accounting Standards - Appendix C.
Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (13) Amended 2015 “The Effects of Changes
in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates” to establish an optional special accounting
treatment that can be Through which it deals with the effects of moving the
foreign exchange rate on the financial statements of this entity. This optional
special accounting treatment issued in this appendix is not considered an
amendment to the amended ‘Egyptian accounting standards currently in force,
beyond the time for the validity of this appendix.

The date of moving the exchange rate: [t is October 27, 2022

The financial period for applying the special accounting treatment
mentioned in this appendix: [t is the fiscal year or the financial period that
begins before the date of moving the exchange rate and ends on or after this date.

First Treatment: Assets Financed by Foreign Currency Liabilities:

An entity that, prior to the date of moving the exchange rate, acquired fixed
assets / real estate investments and / or exploration and evaluation assets and / or
intangible assets (other than goodwill) or right of use assets for lease contracts
financed with obligations in foreign currencies existing at that date can recognize
Included in the cost of those assets in the debit currency differences resulting
from the unpaid part of these liabilities at the end of December 31, 2022 or at the
end of the closing date of the financial statements for the financial period to
apply this accounting treatment if it was previously using the exchange rate used
on that date. The entity can apply this option for each asset separately, and the
adjusted net cost must not exceed the recoverable amount of the asset, which is
measured in accordance with the requirements of the amended Egyptian
Accounting Standard No. (31) “impairment of assets”.

The second treatment: foreign exchange differences:

As an exception to the requirements of Paragraph No. 28 of the amended
Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (13) “The Effects of Changes in Foreign
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Currency Exchange Rates™ related to currency differences, an cntity whose
business results were affected by net profits or losses of currency differences as a
result of moving the unusual forcign exchange rate, whether If the currency of its
catry is the Egyptian pound or any other foreign currency, it shall recognize
within the items of other comprehensive income the debit and credit currency
differences resulting from the retranslation of the balances of the items of a
monelary nature cxisting at the end of December 31, 2022 or at the end of the
day ol the closing date of the financial statements for the financial period To
apply this accounting trcatment. if it was previously using the closing price on
the same date, minus any currency translation differences that were recognized
within the cost of asscts according 1o the initial treatment of this appendix,
considering that these differences resulted mainly from the decision to move the
unusual foreign exchange rate.

The amount of currency diflerences resulting from the retranslation of monctary
items presented in other comprehensive income items is included in the carried
profit or loss at the end of the same financial period to apply the special
accounting treatment in this appendix.

The impact of the special accounting treatment to deal with the effects of the
Flexible of foreign exchange rates

The group’s management has applied some of the special accounting treatments
mentioned in Appendix (C) of the Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (13)
amended in 2015 “The Lftects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates™ issued on
December 27, 2022 by the Minister of Investment Decision No. (4 7035) for the
year 2022, which deals with The special accounting treatment to deal with the
cffects of the flexible of forcign exchange rates, and these treatments arc as
follows:

Recognizing within the items of other comprehensive income the transtation
differences of monctary items existing in forcign currencies on the date of
flexible the exchange rate (October 27, 2022) and including these differences
within the items of other comprehensive income in the statement of
comprchensive income, then transferring them in the same fiscal year to the
carry-over profits or losscs.
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Translated firom Arabic

Al Arafa for Investment and Consultancies
{An Egyptian Joint stock company = Under Public Free Zones)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended January 31, 2023

42- Earnings per share

The carnings per share was determined from the net profit for the financial year
ended January 31. 2023 as follows:-

January 31, January 31,
2023 2022
Net Profit / (1.oss) lor the Year 11 709 279 (5 345 634)
Average number of outstanding shares 470 250 000 470 250 600
during the ycar*
Earnings per share (USIV/Share) 0.024 0.011

0y



lhﬂl

EN TR ELT
10} [apow sy saipdde
Auedwoa ai) yorga

ul poriad jetdueuy

ay3 jo Butuudaq

ay} e *Kinba ur junosoe
snjdans uonenjeAdl

313 0] pappe oq Jjeys
jopOtu uoEN|BAdS I

Jo Buik|dde L1euunud
ayy jo 1oedwi sanenwund
‘A@Andadsodiag

€707 '] Menner oye
10 u0 uiuels spouad
|BIDUBULJ 1O] 2A11DD)30

2Ie [3pOW UOIENRADL A
asn o1 uotido aupy Sutppe
Jo siudpudwe oy

‘uondo

siy1 uisn jo ased ul
SIUILDIEIS [BIJUBLILJ I}
uo edust [enuaod oy
SuIssasse pue Splepuels
asoyl ul paws uondo
jopoLL uolEn|2ANL

a1 uisn pue Asijod
gununoaae pandde ay
duiueyd jo Anjiqissod
) Sudpms puound
SI JudwWDTeURA

JS1venuo) duisea, (6f) "oN paepuels Sununosay uend£8y -
WS1088y/ Jo yuawaiedwy, (] €) "oN paepurls Sununodoy uendASg -

JBunioday
[eraueur,| wisuy, (0g) ‘oN piepurl§ Sununoday uendAdng -

LS9XE [ dwoouy, ($7) "ON plepuels Sununodsy uendAdg -

510117 pue sarewnsT Sununodday ul saduey)
*$a131[0 ] Bununoddy, (¢) ‘oN piepurs Sununodoy uendAdy -
:SA\0]]0J SE 21 yaiym ‘spaepuel§ Sununoady uendidy
ajquotjdde oy jo swos w uondo japow uonenEAd a1 Jo
asn a1 01 pajefas sydeaSered 21 Jo wudupudWE Wl PAYNSA S| -
"S10ss€ d|qITUeIU pue
$108SE Pax1) JO Judtldnseatt juanbasgns uaym |apotu uonenjean
10 asn 2y Fuimoye ‘CZOT Ul PaNSSIaL d1om SpITpUB)S asay] -|

-,,S198sYy a|qidueyug,,
£707 papuaiue (¢7) ‘ON
pizpuelg Sununoday
umd L35 pure |, s1ossy
POXLA,, €707 Popusue

(01) 'ON parpuR)
sununoday uendady

d)ep AN

SJUIWII LS
[er2uRULg oY)
1o Pedun [Enuajo

s)udmpuame Juenjiudis 3sow 2 jo Leunung

SpAEpUE)S
PanssIaa 10 Mo\

ISIUDWIPUDIIE 1URD1JIUFIS IS0 ALY JO AIRUILLNS B 51 TUIMO]|0) )
*splepuelg ununosay
uend4A34 a1 jo suoisiaoid swos Juipuswe pansst sea €707 JO (€£88) "ON 22190(] SJANSILIA L] Y1 “ETOT "9 YdIBW UQ -

ISPIBPUTES sURUN030Y uendAT,] 0] SJUAWIPUINLY put suonipy wWoN  ¢f

AUAY Wod] pajejsunra],

70z Lenuep 1€ papud Jval [BIDUEUL 3} 10] SIUIWIIE)S |RIDUBUL PIIBPIOSUDD IY) 0) §IJON
{souoz 2314 smqng Japun — Suvdwod ya01s Jurop uend£dy uy)
SDIDUE)NSUOD) PUE JUIISIAUL JO] BJRIY |V




WY JSIE Y] 10§
juswyead) sy sarpdde
Auedwod 3y Yarym

u1 pouiad jerdueuly ay) jo
suruuidaq ayj je SISso|
Jo sSurured poume)al

Jo aduejeq ayy 0}

Pappe 29 |[BYS palsaatey
2onpoxd jeInynoLIgde 10j
waunean Sununodoe ay)
Jo Buifdde Areuiunjaud
3y} Jo joedury aAnE|NWND
“APA2adS0al "C7 07
"1 ATEnuef J9)j¢ 10 uo
Sunues spouad [eroueuly
[BNUUE JOJ dA1)23}J9

21 SHUSWPUIWE IS |,

“paepue)s

3|} 0} SjusWpUIWIE

Jo uopeardde ay1 woy
SIUSWIDIE)S [BloUBUY
a uo yoedun [enuaod
ay Suissasse Apualind
SI Juawadeusy

ul pouad ayj Joj SjuUaLAIEIS [BISUBUL] Ay Ul puasald pouad
1591483 2y} jo SurtuuiSaq ay1 e anjeA 11e) SI I8 WD) PAIsIAIRY
2onpoad jeinjnowge ue amseaiu 03 393)2 Aew Auedwod sy
‘pajussasd poriad saneredwos yoea 10§ Pasolasip
aq pinoys (5) "oN plepuels Sunyunosay uend£3q jo (3)8z
ydeiSesed Jopun pannbar uoewiojul aaneuenb oy “1oAsmoH
"parsaaley donpoad (eI natde 03 uoIR[al UL SN 511 Ayl
loj paijdde ase £zgz papuawe ((]) "ON piepuel§ Sununodoy
uendA8g pue £zo7 papuswe {S¢) ‘oN piepuelg Sununoddy
uend4£33 ay} ysrym ul sjuWE)s [e1ausuly ay) jo potiad
ays st yarym ‘poriad Juaund ay aoj (§) ‘oN plepuels Sununodsy
uend43y jo (3)gz ydeaSered sapun pannbar uoneuwuojul
aaneuenb ayy asoposip oy pannbai jou s1 Auedwio)) ay],
"pajsaAiey sonpoJd [ein}noLIde o1 uone|al
u) ‘piepue)s duies ay) o) pappe u3aq daey (p)og pue (9)0g (e)cT
sydesBeied pue ‘papustue uaaq aaey , s)asse paxid, (01) "ON
paepueis Sununoday uendA3y jo (L) pue (9) (¢) sydeideied

f2amnoudy, €707 papuswie (G€) "ON pJEpUElS SunUNoddY
uend£37 ayy 0) apewW SJUIWPUILIE AU L) IM DUBPIOIIE U]

aJEp AT

S)uIW)E)S
[eloueuLy a1
uo jpedun [eyuOf

S)UIWPUIWIE JURIFIUSIS JS0W 1) Jo Argwung

spagpue)s
PINSSIAT 0 MIN]

Jqury Wod} pIjejsueL],

€707 Atenuep [¢ papud Ieak [Eraueul] Y] 10§ SJHIWDIT)S [BIDUTUL] PA)EPI[OSUOI Y) 0} SI)ON
(sauo7 224 aqng Japuf) — Auvdwed yd0)s Jujop ueyd£3q uy)
SIIIULI[NSUO) PUT JUIUSIAU] J0J BJRIY [V




pajuasaxd

pouiad jsa1jaea 2y jo Suruuidaq ay) Je Anba ut junoaoe
snjdins uonen[eaa a3 0y ) Swippe £q paziufoaal aq pjnoys
aoueleq Sujuado sy ul anfea J1e) ayy pue Junowe FulA1ied
snotaaid sy) U2amIaq IdUIYJIP AUy “91ep Jey) U0 IS0 PP
§)1 SE an|eA JIBj JEy] 35N 0] puB JwWi] IS d1) J0J SUIWPUILLL
pauonjuat-saoqe ay) patjdde uaaq saey Auedwiod ay) yoiym

Aep AR

SJUIUII)T)S
[erdueuy oY)
uo yedun [epudjod

SpACpUE)s
S)udmpuIWE Juedjiugls Jsour ap Jo Lcwwng PONSSIAL 10 MIN

NGUIY WO PIu[SUEL],

€707 A1enuup (¢ papud Jeak [EdueUl) 3] 10) SJUIWD)IE)S [EINICUL] PIIBPIOSUOD 3Y) 0] SIJON
(sou0Z 921y dnjqng 1apup) - Luedwod ya0)s jujop uend£3y uy)
SIIUE) NSO PUE JUIWJSIAU] 10) BjEaY |V




1ﬂ‘_ll

"aumy sty oy

Jdoj ppow siy) safdde
Auedwod 33 yorym

u1 poraad [erdueuy ay) jo
Burum3aq aty) ye $3ss0|
10 SSUIUIBD PIuLL}al Jo
daue[eq 31j) 0) pappe aq
[[BYS JopOLU an[eA 11ej 3y)
Jo 3wAjdde Areuiunjaad
ay jo joedun aanze(nwng
‘Alaanaadsoazaa

€707 "1 Atenuer 193Je
10 u0 Suiue)s spoiad

-uondo

siy) Buisn jo ased

U1 SHUBLJR]S |BIOURUY
ay) uo joedw fenuarod
ay) Buissasse pue
PIBPUE]S AU} UL PaJEIS
uotjdo [apow anjea

Jte ayy Suwisn pue Aoijod

LSenuo)) Juisea, (6¢) "ON prepurl§ Sununoody uendAsg
,suoneradQ panuyuossi(] pue s[es 10) ploH
$39s8Vy JudLIN)-uoN,, (z£) 'oN piepuelg Sununoody uend43g
,S19ssy Jo juawutedwy, (1€) "oN piepum§ Sununodsdy uendAsg
. duipoday
[eroueul,{ waju], () "ON piepuwls Surunoday wend43g
JSaxe ] awoodu], ($7) ‘ON piepuels Sununody uendAsg
Sa1ey 23ueydxq udiaro ] ul saduey))
J0 5193159 3y, (£1) 'oN piepuel§ Sununoday uend4Asg
"SI0l pue s31ewiIsy Jununoday ui sagueyd
‘sa191104 Bununoddy, () ‘oN piepuels Sununoddy uend4Asy
(SiuaAeIg |eIoueul]
Jo uoneuasaid; {1) "oN piepums Sununoasy uend4sy
:SMO}|0j se
a1e Ya1ym ‘spaepuels Sununoody uend£3g ajqearjdde
3y} Jo awos ur uondo [PpowW aN[BA JIBJ 33 JO 3sn 31 O}

i

[RIoURUL) J0J 9AIDRJR | Sununoooe paijdde ayy | Pae[ad sydeiFered atwos Jo juswpusiue ul paynsal siy], -g Ljadoad yusunsaauy,,
a1e [apow anjea uiej oyl | Juidueyo jo Lpiqissod -Anadoad yusunsaaut €707 PIpudme
asn 0) uondo ap Suippe | ayl Suikpms Apuaiind JO Juswainseaw juanbasqns uaym Jopoul snjea 1ej (p£) "ON pivpue)§

Jo sjuswpuowe ay | SI JuawaFeue| asn Ay Bulmo||e ‘EZOT Ul Panssial Sem pIepue)s sy, -| Junpunoday uendAsy
S)HIWA}T)S
[BI2uBUY 1) spaepuv)s

ep 2ADIPY

uo jyedwy [enyuajod

SJUIWPUIWE JULIJIUSLS Js0w 3y jo Arpwwng

PAnssIaL 10 MIN

eV W0} PIJejSutL],

€707 Alcnuer [¢ papud JeaA [Eloueul 3y) 10j S)UIUIAYEIS [EIAUEUL PIJEPI|OSHOD IY) 0} SIJON
(sau07Z 221 qng Japup) — Auedurod ya0)s yutop uepd4A3g uy)
SIIUL)NSHOD) PUE JUDUIISIAUJ JO] BJBIY |V




I—.FI

SJUIWA)TJS
|[erducuy My splepug)s
up a0 uo joedurn [eHI}O] SHUIWPUIWE JUBIFIUGIS Js0w ) Jo Arpwwng PanssiaL a0 MIN

€707 Aenuup J¢ papua dgak [BIdUTUI] ) JOJ S)UIWI)E)S [EUTUL] PIITPIOSUOD 3Y) 0) SAON
(sauo7z 224y Jqnyg Jopup — Auedwod ya0)s ymop uendL{8y uy)
SIIDUC][NSUOC]) PUE JUIWISIAU] 10) BJuIY [V

JquIY O] PJE[SUT.L ],




“AlPANRdsoa)al €7(7

' Afenuef J9)je .10 uo
Bunaes spouad [elousuly
|[enuuE JOJ 2A1ID3JR

ale SJUBpUILIE 383Y |,

Jo uoneaydde ayy woy
SIUaWI)L)S [BlIOURUILY
ay) uo joedurt jenuajod
ay1 Buissasse AJuaund
s1 Juawadeug |y

*(£|8uip1odoe papustue sem ,, SJ9SsE

paxid, (01) prepuels Sununoaay uend£34) ‘pajsaaley sonpord
[emynaude jo yusuneas; Sununodsse ayy 0] 123dsal ynum ‘pappe asam
(£9) pue (25) - (eg) sydeadesed pue papuswe aiam (H§) pue ‘(47)

i

EITECTETT

10j [ppouw si sarpdde
Aueduiod a1y Yarym

ul poidad [eueuy

ay) jo swmuurdaq

ay) Ju *Aunbo ur yunosoe
snjdans uoyen[eaas

2y} 0) pappe 2aq |jeys
|[SpowW uoTIBNjBAI AU}

Jo BuiAjdde Aseununjaud
ayy jo joedwr sAne|nwno
‘A[PAnaadsoajad

‘€207 "I AlvnuBf 1))
10 uo 3unae)s spolsad
[BIOUBULY 10} 2A1)03)J2

218 [9pOUI UOITEN|RAL D)
asn o} uondo ay) Juippe
JO sjuswpudwe |,

ajep 2A19H

‘uondo

SIy3 3uisn jo ased ut
SJUSWIIE]S [BIDUBUL] S
uo pedun [eyusajod ay
Suissasse pue plepuels
ay; ut pajess uondo
[9pow uonenjeA

ay) Buisn pue Aorjod
Sununosoe paijdde oy

"€£20¢ papuawe (9¢)
'oN prepuelg Sununoaoy uendA3g jo (g) roN ydeiSered yim
90UEBPI0OIIE U] SJISSE JO UONEDIISSE[D AY) )M JUI)SISUOD pInoys
(,s1955v 9|qiBueu, (g7) prepueg Sununosoy uendAdy w
paIEIS [OpOiU Y} 10 |, S19sSY paxi, (0]) piepuel§ Suljunoddy
uendA3g oy ui pajeis [9powl YY) Iayjatjm) [apoll uolEnjeAl
ay) Buif|dde jo ases oy wr pue ‘wndjondd Jo AnSiul
ay e asodind supi 1o pawejuiew 13isi8ar v ul paldsIdal
pue uonenjea ulp pazijeioads swadxa Aq no pawued pnoys
uoljen|2Ad 3} ‘s)asse uouenjea pue uonelojdxs ioj |apow
UoIJEN[BAQI O} JO [2POW 1503 3} Jayno saljdde Auedwod ay),

‘(8) (s-1) sydeaSesed asaym ‘gZ0Z Ul panssial sem plepuess Siyj,

W damymaudy,,
€707 papuowe

(S€) "ON pavpue)s
Sununodoy uendLdyg

1, 532IN0SNY
[edaUlA] JO Ul EN[BAY
pue 10y uonesojdxy,,

SuiBueys jo LAnpiqissod ‘$)asse uonenjea pue uonelojdxe £Z07 papuaure
ay) Buidpms A[juaLind Jo juswainsea Juanbasgns uaym |Spoul UOIEN|BAS (9¢) "oN piepue)g
sI Juawadeue|y JO 9sn 3y FwMo[e ‘EZ(T Ul PANSSIal SBM pIBpuUB)S SIY], -] Bununodoy uendAisy
SHUAWI TS
Jetaoueul) 2y spiepue)s

uo joudun enuajoq

SHUDWPUIWE JUEIFIUSIS Jsow NP Jo Aivwung

PaussIal 10 MIN

QEIY WOy paejsutl]

€707 Arenuep [¢ pIpU JBIA [BIAUTBUL] 3Y) J0] S)UIWIIE)S [EIDUCUL PIITPI|OSUCY aY) 0) EIJON
(sau0Z 324 Njqng Japup) — Aueduwiod yaoys Jutop uend4A3y uy)
SIIUT)NSUO) PUE JUIUISIAU] 10] LAy |V




198 18y}
aso|astp pjnoys Aueduios
ay ‘pousad sarpdes ue

10} paidde aq jjeys (0S)
'ON piepuels§ Sununoooy
uend43g ay1 1 pue
‘PT0OT ‘1 AINf JA)JE 10 HO
Bunaes spouad jerdueuly
[enuue J0j 2A1129J)2
s1(0S) "ON plepuel§
Sununosay uendASy

ln_h..l

"piepueIS 2y}
Jo uonesijdde ayy woy
SJUDWIE)S |BIOUBLLY
ay1 uo ypedwy jenuajod
ai) Sunenjeas Apjuaund
s JuawaFeuey

Aq paoe[dal aq 0} spiepuels fununoday uendAgq Jayio

ut (££) "oN piepuri§ Sununodoy uend4A33 o) 9ousia)al Auy
*SIORIUOY) AdUBINSU[,, /€ "ON piepuel§ Sununoooy uendAsg
s[aaues pue sasejdal {(g) ‘oN piepuelg Sununoaoy uend4A3g
*SMOJJ Used pue ‘souetuiojiad [eiouruy

‘uoiisod jeroueuy s, Auediwod ay) uo S19ENUOI FdURINSUL

Jo yoedun a1y Suissasse 10j sISeq Y] YIim SJUDWIRIS [RIDUBUL
atj} Jo s1asn sapiAcid uoIBULIOUL STY | "SIOBNUOD 50L] §193|Jal
Kmnyyana et uoneunoju; Meradoidde sapracid Auedwos

3y} 1Y) 2INSUI 0) SI pIEpUE]S U} JO 3A1192(qO Y, *UNSO|asIp
pue ‘uoneIuasaid JuauaINSeaw J1ay) SOUILLIDIBP pue
‘paepuels siy)Jo adods ayp uryim Jujey S1ORIJUOD ddUBINSUI
Jo uonugosal jo sajdisunid ay) sauIULIAIEP PIBPUERIS SIY ]|

*WSRENuUo) dueansuajy,,

(05) "oN paupun)s
Supunoddy uend4Asyg

LY JS.A1L 9 10§
juaunea siyy sarjdde
Auvdwod ay) garym

u1 porsad jedueury ay) jo
dwumdaq ay) Ju SISS0|
10 SBUIUALd paule;a.l

Jo aduereq ay) 0y

Pappe 2q [JBYs paisaatey
sonpoud jranynoude Joj
uaLeal; Sununosse ay)
Jo duikjdde Aeunwijaud
ay3 jo joedunl sangnwINd

9)up 2ANYH

‘paepuels
alj) 0} SUAWPUIWIE

S)uaWINuIS
[eduEuLy )
uo yoedun [eludo]

SHUIUIPUI WL JUTIHUTIS Jsoul 31} Jo ArBwwng

spaepue)s
Panssial 10 MAN

QLY WOLJ PIJUISUEI L

€707 AMenuep 1¢ papud Ieak [eroueuy a1 10j SYUIWI)E)S [TIDUBULJ PAYEPI0SUOI Y} 0) SA)ON

(souoZ aaayq ngng sapup) - Aueduwiod ya0)s jutop ueyd4Asq uy)
S2{IUB)|NSUOD) PUT JUI)SIAU] 10] BJCIY [V




1.“..h.!

Auadoad yuaunsaauj , (¢€) "oN plepuels Sununossy uenydA8y -
51985y 9|qi8ueiu, (£7) "ON piepue)§ Sununossy ueildAsgy -
", 51988V paxtd, (01) "ON piepuels Sununodoy uend4A3g -
1SMO||0] s
¢, S10enua) asueinsul, (0S) "oN piepurlg Sununosoy uendA3g
Jo uoneaydde ay Jo sjuswannbas oy yum Adwos o) papuswe
U23q aAey spiepuels 3ununoday uendA3y Suimo)|o) ayl -
(0S) "ON piepurlg Fununody ueldAsy

2)up 3A1IIWT

SjudWI)L)S
e uRul 21
uo jyedwr jenuajog

sjudmipudwe juediuds ysow ay) jo Lrewwng

spaepue)s
PONSSIAL 10 MIN

IIQEAY WOIJ PIJCISUBL],

€707 Aenuep [¢ papua Jeaf [eldueUl) ay) 0] SJUIWIT)S [ErIULUh PI)EPIosu0d aty) 0) sA)ON
{souozZ 2. aqng rapuny — Auedwod Jaoys jujor uepdL8y uy)
SHIULINSUOD) PUT JUIUISIAU] JO] CJBIY |V




